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SH|NHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC

Management's Statement of Responsibility fоr the Рrераrаtiоп and Аррrочаl of the Fiпапсiаl
Statements fоr the Yеаr Ended 31 December 2о24

Тhе following statement, which must Ье considered together with the description of responsibilities
of the auditors contained in the presented lndependent Auditors' Report, is made for the рчrроsе
of division of responsibilities of the auditor and the mапаgеmепt of the Bank regarding the financial
statements of Shinhan Bank Kazakhstan JSC (hеrеiпаftеr - the Bank).

The Bank's management shatt Ье tiabte fоr preparation of the financia[ statements presenting fairly, in
aIl materiaI respects, the financiaI position of the Bank as of 3'l DесеmЬеr 2024, as we[[ as its financiaI
реrfоrmапсе, cash flows and changes in the equity fоr the уеаr then ended, in ассоrdапсе with the
lпtеrпаtiопа[ FinanciaI Reporting Standards (lFRSs).

When preparing the financial statements, the management sha[[ Ье liable fоr:

Se[ecting appropriate accounting principles and applying them consistently;
Apptying rеаsопаЬ[е estimates and calculations;
Comptying with the requirements of the lFRS оr disclosure of all material deviations from the IFRS
in the notes to the financial statements; апd
Рrераriпg the financial statements assuming that the Bank witl continue as а going сопсеrп in the
foreseeable future except when such an assumption is unjustified.

The management is also responsible for:

Designing, implementing and ensuring effective and re[iable internal сопtrо[ in the Bank;
Record keeping that a[[ows providing sufficiently accurate information оп the financiaI position of
the Bank at апу date and ensuring comp[iance of the financia[ statements with lFRSs;
Record keeping ассоrdiпg to the laws of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan;
Taking а[[ reasonably possible actions to safeguard the Bank's assets; and
Detecting and preventing frauds and оthеr abusive practices.

The financial statements fоr the уеаr ended 31 DесеmЬеr 2074 wеrе аррrочеd Ьу the management of
Shinhan Bank Kazakhstan JSC оп 28 March 2025.

оп behalf of the mа
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Cho Yongeun
chairman of the

28 Маrсh 2025
Almaty City, Republic of

G.Sh. ZЙ;ЙfiЙеча
Chief Ассочп(апt
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lNDEPENDENT AUDlтoRs, REPoRT

То the Board of Directors апd the Management Воаrd of Shinhan Bank Kazakhstan JSC

Auditors' Report

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Shinhan Bank Kazakhstan JSC (hereinafter -

the Bank), which соmрrisе the statement of financial position as of 31 DесеmЬег 2024, апd statement
of profit оr loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity апd statement of cash
flows fоr the уеаr then ended, including а summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

lп оur opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fair[y, in all material respects, the
financia[ position of the Bank as of 31 DесеmЬеr 2024, as well as its financial реrfоrmапсе апd cash flows
fоr the уеаr then ended, in ассоrdапсе with lnternational Financial Reporting Standards (lFRSs).

Basis for opinion

We conducted оur audit in ассоrdапсе with lnternational Standards оп Auditing (lSAs). Очr
responsibi[ities uпdеr those standards аrе further described in the АuditоrЗ Responsibilities fоr the Дчdit
of the FinancialStotements section of оur rероrt.

We аrе independent of the Bank in ассоrdапсе with the lпtеrпаtiопаI Ethics Stondords Boord for
Accountonts' Code of Ethics for Professional Дссоuпtспts (lESBA Code) and ethical requirements that аrе
relevant to очr audit of the financial statements in Kazakhstan, and we have futfitted оur other ethical
responsibilities in ассоrdапсе with these requirements and the |ESBA Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and аррrорriаtе to рrочidе а basis fоr очr opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Gочеrпапсе for the Financial Statements

The management is responsible for the рrераrаtiоп апd fair presentation of the financial statements in
ассоrdапсе with lпtеrпаtiопа[ Financial Reporting Standards and fоr iпtеrпаl сопtrо[, as management
determines is necessary to епаЬ[е the рrераrаtiоп of а financial statement that is free frоm materiaI
misstatement, whether due to fraud оr еrrоr.

lп рrераriпg the financial statements, management is responsible fоr assessing the Bank's abitity to
continue as а going сопсеrп, disclosing, as app[icab[e, matters relating to going сопсеrп and using the
going сопсеrп basis of accounting, unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank оr to cease
ореrаtiопs оr has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with gоvеrпапсе аrе responsible fоr overseeing the Bank's financiat rероrtiпg рrосеss.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

оur objectives аrе to obtain rеаsопаьlе assurance about whether the financial statements as а whole
аrе free frоm materia[ misstatement, whether due to fraud оr еrrоr and to issue ап auditor's rероrt that
includes оur opinion. Reasonable аssurапсе is а high tечеt of аssurапсе but is not а guarantee that ап
audit conducted in ассогdапсе with lnternationat standards оп Auditing witt atways detect а materiat
misstatement When it exists. Misstatements can arise frоm fraud оr еrrоiапd аrе considered materiaI if,
individuatty оr in the aggregate, they coutd reasonably Ье expected to iпfluепсе the economic decisions
of users taken based оп these financiat statements.

ТоериществО с ограниченноЙ ответственностьЮ "ВDО Qazaqstan", зарегистрированнОе в соответст8иИ с захонодательством Республики Казахстан,

fi:ýfi"tЖН:Н:ЖНl?iаfi;:fi#::ili:::j:lТý'il1,".l"ijНЪlfабританского общестаа с отаетственностью, ограниченной гарантией его

BDo Qazaqstan, а limited tiabitlty раrtпеrshiр, registered under the taws of the RepUbtic of Kazakhstan, is а member of BDo lnternationat Limited, а tJK соmрапуtimited Ьу 8чаrап tee, апd fоrms part of the intern;tionat BDo пеtwогk oiindependint mеmьеr firmi, '



As а part of an audit in ассоrdапсе with lnternational Standards оп Auditing, we ехеrсisе professional
judgement and maintain professionaI scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

r ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud оr еrrоr, design and реrfоrm audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and аррrорriаtе to provide а basis for оur opinion.

The risk of not detecting а mаtеriаl misstatement resu[ting frоm fгачd is higher than the one resulting
frоm еrrоr, as fraud mау involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, оr the
очеrridе of iпtеrпаt сопtrо[;

a Obtain ап understanding of iпtеrпаl сопtrоl rеlечапt to the audit to design audit procedures that
аrе appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing ап орiпiоп оп the
effectiveness of the Bank's iпtеrпа[ contro[;
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made Ьу management;
Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going сопсеrп basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether а materiaI uncertainty exists related to events
оr conditions that mау cast significant doubt оп the Bank's abitity to continue as а going сопсеrп.
lf we conclude that а material uncertainty exists, we аrе required to draw attention in очr
auditor's rероrt to the related disclosures in the financia[ statements оr, if such disclosures аrе
inadequate, to modify очr opinion, Очr conclusions аrе based оп the audjt evidence obtained up
to the date of очr auditor's rероrt. Ноwечеr, future events оr conditions mау cause the Bank to
cease to continue as а going сопсеrп;
EvaIuate the очеrа[l presentation, structure and content of the financiaI statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financiaI statements rерrеsепt the under[ying transactions and events
in а mаппеr that achieves fair presentation.

a

a

a

We communicate with those charged with gочеrпапсе regarding, among other matters, the р[аппеd
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, incIuding апу significant deficiencies in
internal сопtrоl that we identify during оur audit.

The engagement раrtпеr оп the audit resulting in this independent а is issued

Auditor
001 394
Qualification Commission
of the auditors of the Rk.

Dirесtоr R.M. Rakhi

Certificate NsМФ-
.2021 issued Ьу the

for tion

'S

BDO Qazaqstan LLP
State license Ns25007259 issued on 5 Маrсh 2025 Ьу the
Committee for lпtеrпаl State Audit of the Ministry of
Fiпапсе of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan.

28 March 2025
Almaty City

Аудитор
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SHINHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC

STATEMENT ОF PROF|T OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENS|VE |NCOME
FоR THER YEAR ENDED 31 DEсEMBER 2024
(iп thousonds of Kozokhston tепgе)

ItsDo
QДZДQSТДN

Для
от,.tётов

Notes 2о24 2о23

б2,270,849 -
(з8,039,864) "

4
4

107,926,842
(6з,740,704)

lпtеrеst income
lпtеrеst expenses
Net interest income
commission income
Commission expenses
Net fee income
Net profit frоm fоrеigп сuгrепсу transactions
Оthеr operating income, net
Ореrаtiпg income
Provisions fоr expected credit losses
Реrsоппеl ехрепsеs
Оthеr gепеrа[ and administrative expenses
profit before iпсоmе tax
lпсоmе tax (ехрепsе)/rесочеry
Profit fоr the уеаr
Оthеr comprehensive loss less income tax
ltems thot аrе оr mоу Ье reclassified subsequently iп profit
оr {oss:
provision for revaluation of financial assets at fair va[ue
through оthеr comprehensive income
- net change of fair va[ue

Оthеr comprehensive loss for the уеаr less income tax
Total comprehensive income fоr the уеаr
Earnings реr shаrе
Basic and dituted earnings реr share (tenge)

оп behatf of the ma nk:

44,186,138 24,230,985 "

184,705
(177,826)

167,9з4 ,

(195,з76) "

6
1,581,з28

338,961
2,699,91з

14z,Oz4 ,

879 (27,442) .

5

7
6
8

9

46 ,l 13 з06 27,о45,48о"
(249,707)

(1,408,018)
(991,040)

(114,327|"
(1 ,16з,391 )-

(565,997)"
43,464,541
(7,757,z9з)

25,201,765 -
15 940-

__ээJgl}ц_ 25,217,705 ,

з4,548
34,548

35 7о7 248 25,252,253

19 з5 604.99 25 145.49

,М
Yongeun G.Sh. Zhaksyфyeva

chairman of the chief Accountant

28 Маrсh 2025
A[maty City, Republic of Kaza

Notes оп pages 10-59 sha[[ Ье ап integrat раrt of these financiat statements
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SH|NHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC

STATEMENT оF FlNANсIAL PoSlTIoN
FоR тнЕ YEAR ENDED зl DEсEMBER 2024
(iп. thousonds of Kazakhston tепgе)

BDо
QAz,'АQsтдN

Для
отчётов

Notes З1 DесеmЬеr
2о24

31 DесеmЬеr
2о2з

ASsETs
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts and deposits with banks
Loans granted to customers:

- loans granted to large-sca[e businesses
- loans granted to small and medium-sized businesses
- loans granted to retail customers

Financial assets at amortized cost
Current corporate income tax aSSetS

Nоп-сurrепt assets held fоr sa[e
Рrореrtу, plant and equipment, intangib[e assets and right-of-
use assets
Deferred income tax assets
other assets
Total assets
LlABlLlTlES
Accounts and deposits of banks
Счrrепt accounts and deposits from customers:

- current accounts and deposits of соrроrаtе customers
- current accounts and deposits of retail customers

Loans frоm international financiaI organizations
оthеr liabilities
Total liabilities
EQUlTY
Shаrе capital
Additionat paid-in capitat
Capitat rеsеrчеs
Retained earnings
Totalequity
Total liabilities and equity

оп behalf of the Bank:

450,719
48,768

7з4 з44
664,о17,16о 474,210,07? ,

506,3 1 6 з48,4з8

546,661
4з,975

1,з35,,l01

411,49з,451
8,54"l ,984
7,07з,267
1, 280,082

582 787 062 4z8 687 2zz

10,028,720
144,196
z79,516

70,777,666
81 230 098 45,522,850

о17 160 ____цз,zl9рц

10
11

529,876,309
184,91з

,|5,983,905

49,510,111
12,456,z70
5з,,l23,428

800,796
1 55,691

335,979,749
,l84,9,10

6,978,987
з1,зз3,988
9,802,142

88,,107,686
43з,588
1 55,691

12

12

1z
1з

14

9
15

16
16

17
18

557,696,950
8,688,736

,l4,058,07з

1,836,987

19 "l 0,028,720
144,196
z79,516

35,070,418

664

,иИ
G.Sh. ZЁаЙsуЙауеча
chief Accountant

Cho Yongeun
chairman of the

28 Маrсh 2025
Almaty City, Republic

Notes оп pages 10-59 shatt Ье ап integra[ part of these financia[ statements.
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Ао -ШИНХАН БАНк КА3АХСТАН.

STATEMENT ОF CASH FLOWS
FоR тнЕ YEAR ENDED з1 DEсEMBER 2024

thоusопds kazokhston

Cash flows frоm operating activities
Еаrпеd interest income
Paid interest ехрепsеs
Еаrпеd fee income
Pajd fee expenses
Net receipts from foreign сurrепсу transactions
Оthеr operating receipts/(payments)
Employee benefits
Other paid gепеrа[ and administrative expenses
Decrease in ореrаtiпg assets
Accounts and deposits with banks
Loans granted to customers
lпсrеаsе iп operating liabilities
Accounts and deposits of banks
Сurrепt accounts and deposits of customers
Net cash flows frоm operating activities Ьеfоrе income tax
paid iпсоmе tax
Net cash flows frоm operating activities
Cash flows frоm investing activities
Acquisition of рrореrtу, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Sale/(acquisition) of financial assets at amortized cost
Disposal of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Net cash flows used iп investing activities
Cash flows frоm financing activities
Воrrоwiпgs repaid / (attracted )
paid tiabitities оп lease
Net cash flows from/(used iп) financing activities
Net changes iп cash and cash equivalents
Effect of changes of exchange rates оп cash and cash equiva[ents
Provision for expected credit losses
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the уеаr
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the уеаr

оп behatf of the mа

276,608
зз5 з92 908

154 652 684 339,01 0,1 67
(8, 1 20,208) (352,8J7)

146 532 476 з38 657 зз0

(67,593)
(67,666,499|

968,646
36,о42,77о {66,765,446)

2о24

1 06,679,595
(62,567,225)

185,474
(172,054)
1,5з2,224

8,10,1 1з
(1,417,111|
(1,14з,448)

(5,392)
(29,606,98з )

zоzз

62,55з,29,t
(з4,975,169)

165,789
(21 6,608)
2,657,992

з06,64з
(1 ,1 26,230)

(436,401)

(10,,l66)
(25,578,490)

161,814
140,195,677

(з9,2з8)
з6,082,008

6,625,754
(1 25,1 93)

(,l4,904,238)
(114,778)

6,500,56,| (15,019,016)
1 89,075,807

4,8з5,606
(,l4,85з)

з35 979 749

256,872,868
(1,зз7,714)

(9,211)
80 45з 806

335 979 749529,876,309

\

Cho Yongeun
сhаjrmап of the Ма

G.Sh. Zha
chief Accountant

28 March 2025
Almaty City, Repub[ic of

Notes on pages 'l0-59 shall Ье ап integra[ part of these financial statements
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SH|NHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC

STATEMENT ОF CHANGES lN EQU|TY
FoR тнЕ YEAR ENDED з1 DEсEMBER 2024
(iп thousonds of Kozokhston tепgе)

1о,о28,72о _171,1эб __цэ,51_6

Retained
earnings

Total equity

(34,548) ___э,8э1,7Jэ_ __ц,279,ээz_
25,717,705 25 217 705

As of 1 January 202З
Profit fоr the уеаr
Net changes in fair ча[uе of financial assets at fair value
through оthеr comprehensive income
Tota[ оthеr comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the уеаr
As of 31 DесеmЬеr 2о23
Profit fоr the уеаr
Net changes in fair ча[uе of financia[ assets at fair ча[uе
through other comprehensive income
Total other comprehensive iпсоmе
Tota[ comprehensive income for the уеаr
As of 31 DесеmЬеr 2024

оп behalf of the mап Bank

Cho Yongeun
сhаirmап of the

Shаrе capital Addition
al paid-

iп
capital

Capital
rеsеrчеs

provision fоr
гечаlчаtiоп of

financial assets at
fair чаlче through

other comprehensive
income

з4 548 з4 548
34,548 34,548

1 0,028,720 _1лlJээ_ __цэЕlэ_
з4 548 25,217,705 25,257,253

__llдZ9l1!_
35,707,248

45 522 85о
з5,707,748

з5,707,248 з5,707,248
1 7zo _1з1,1э!_ __цэ,51э_

z
7о,777,666 81 230 098

G.Sh. Zhaksyбayeua
chief Accountant

28 Маrсh 2025
Atmaty City, Repub
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SH|NHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC

NOTES ТО ТНЕ FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS
FoR тнЕ YEAR ENDED 31 DEсEMBER2024

tsDо
QAzA Qsтдi

Для
отчётов

thousands kazokhstoni

1. BAсKGRoUND

(а) Organization and primary activities

The Bank was founded in the Republic of Kazakhstan in 2008 as а joint stock соmрапу. The primary
activities of the Вапk consist in the attraction of deposits and the maintenance of customer accounts,
loans granting and issue of guarantees, provision of cash апd sett[ement services, making transactions
with securities and foreign сurrепсу.

The officia[ status of the Bank as а [ega[ entity is estab[ished through the state registration with the
Ministry of Justice of the Republic and Kazakhstan (Certificate of the state registration of а [ega[ entity
No. 5037-1900-AO (FР), the right to Ье engaged in banking established Ьу the Agency of the Repubtic of
Kazakhstan for regu[ation and supervision of financial market and financiaI organizations (АFS) ([icense
to sett[e banking апd оthеr transactions No. 't.1.258 dated 28 November 2008).

lп January 201 5, in connection with the entry into force of the Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan Оп
Дmепdmепts апd Дltеrоtiопs fo Сеrtоiп Legislative Дсts of the Republic of Kozakhstan Сопсеrпiпg the
Дuthorization System, the designation of а type of banking transaction 'related to organization of foreign
сurrепсу exchange transactions' was changed to the 'organization of foreign счrrепсу exchange
transactions', including the organization of foreign exchange cash transactions, [icense of the Bank was
re-issued(Licenseof theNationaIBankof theRepubticof KazakhstanNo. 1.1.258dated20.01.2015). lп
January 2017, due to а change of the legal address, the license of the Bank was re-issued (License of the
National Bank of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan No. 1.1.258 dated 27.01 .2017).

Legal address of the Bank: З8, Dostyk Ave., Almaty City, 050010, Repubtic of Kazakhstan.

The Bank has по branches. The most of assets апd tiabitities аrе in the Repubtic of Kazakhstan.

The Bank is who[ly owned Ьу Shinhan Вапk JSC (Seoul, Republic of Коrеа) (hereinafter rеfеrгеd to as the
Раrепt Bank оr the Sharehotder). The ultimate раrепt соmрапу is Shinhan FinanciaI Group Со. Ltd., which
is entitled to direct, in its so[e discretion and in its own interests, the activities of the Вапk. Моrе detai[s
оп related party transactions аrе disclosed in Note 22.

(Ь) Operatingenvironment

Gепеrаl

The Bank's activities аrе carried out mainly in Kazakhstan. According[y, the Bank is exposed to the risks
iпhеrепt in kazakhstan's economic and financia[ markets, which exhibit the characteristics of an
emerging mаrkеt есопоmу. The tegat system, tax system апd [ega[ frаmеwоrk continue to evo[ve but аrе
subject to varying interpretations and frequent changes which, along with оthеr [ega[ апd financial
barriers, ехасеrЬаtе the problems faced Ьу organizations operating in Kazakhstan.

Economic factors

Очеr the past few уеаrs, the wоrld and financia[ markets have experienced а long list of disturbances.
lпtеr a[ia, they include the coronavirus pandemic, the economic recession in China, rising епеrgу prices,
чпrеst in lrап and а пumЬеr of оthеr countries, gtobat tightening of monetary policy, the wаr between
Russia and Ukraine and the Palestinian-lsraeli conf[ict.

The паtчrаl сочrsе апd оrgапiс deve[opment of the economies of the teading countries wеrе disrupted.
Uncertainty of future events, volati[ity in raw and capital markets, [ogisticat рrоЬ[еms led to financial
difficutties fог mапу companies, difficutties in forecasting апd budgeting the activities of organizations
in various sectors of the есопоmу.

10



SH|NHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC

NOTES ТО ТНЕ FlNANC|AL STATEMENTS
FоR тнЕ YEAR ENDED з 1 DEсEMBER 2024 (coNTlNUED)
(iп thousonds of Kozokhstani tепgе)

The aggravation of the geopo[itica[ situation led to the ехрапsiоп of sanctions and restrictions of а
пumЬеr of countries against сеrtаiп sectors of the Russian есопоmу, Russian companies and citizens; а
пчmЬеr of iпtеrпаtiопаl companies suspended оr terminated their business activities in the Russian
Federation, as we[[ as ceased to cooperate with the companies associated with the Russian Fеdеrаtiоп.
The management of the Вапk mопitоrs the deve[opment of the situation and takes atl necessary actions
to rеduсе and [eve[ emerging risks, ensure uninterrupted activities and maintain the financial stabitity
of the Bank.

The geopo[itical crisis continues to hаче а negative impact оп the deve[opment of the world есопоmу.
Uпdеr the рrеssurе of rising епеrgу prices and growing uncertainty, the economies of mапу countries аrе
slowing down. Weaker economic activities аrе confirmed Ьу business activity indicators. The global
inflation rеmаiпs at historical highs. However, against the backdrop of а slight decrease in wor[d рriсеs
for oiI and оthеr епеrgу rеsоurсеs, the очеrа[[ globat inflation continued to decline in аппча[ terms in
2024, without а significant dec[ine in economic activity.

Оп 15 NочеmЬеr 2024, the internationa[ rating agency Fitch Ratings confirmed the sovereign credit rating
of the Republic of Kazakhstan at ВВВ, with а stable outlook. The key factors for maintaining Kazakhstan's
credit rating rеmаiп its strопg fiscal position and significant ехtеrпаl rеsеryеs, which have contributed
to resi[ience to ехtеrпа[ factors. According to Fitch Ratings, foreign ехсhапgе reseryes, inctuding tiquid
assets of the Nationa[ Fund of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan, increased Ьу 1 '|% in January-October 2024 and
amounted to З8% of GDP. Net foreign assets accounted fоr 33% of GDP, which is significantly higher than
the median of countries with а simi[ar credit rating. At the same time, the country's dependence оп rаw
materials, high inftation and ап underdeveloped economic policy рrоgrаm аrе noted. According to the
аgепсу, the measures taken to diversify the есопоmу take time, taking into account the difficulties
associated with the economic situation. According to Fitch estimates, the comp[etion of the expansion
of activities at the Tengiz field (postponed unti[ the епd of 2025) wil[ Ьа[апсе the impact of the
geopoliticaI situation iп the rеgiоп.

Fitch Ratings ana[ysts predict а decrease iп inf[ation in 2025 to 8.'|%. The agency emphasizes the
commitment of the National Bank to а floating exchange rate, which hetps to absorb negative factors.

ln addition, the oit апd gas sector in the Republic of Kazakhstan remains subject to the influence of
po[itical, legislative, tax and regulatory changes in the Republic of Kazakhstan. The prospects for
economic stability of the Repub[ic of Kazakhstan [argely depend оп the effectiveness of economic
mеаsчrеs taken Ьу the Gочеrпmепt, as we[[ as оп the development of the [egal, regulatory and potitical
systems, specifical[y оп the circumstances that аrе beyond the сопtrоl of the Bank.

The accompanying financial statements present the assessment of the Bank's mапаgеmепt of the possible
impact of сurrепt conditions оп the реrfоrmапсе and financiaI position of the Bank. However, the impact
of changes in the economic situation оп the future реrfоrmапсе and financial position of the Bank is
сurrепtlу difficutt to determine.

2. FRAMEWORK FОR PREPARATION ОF ТНЕ F|NANCIAL STATEMENTS

(а) Statement of сопfоrmапсе to lFRýs

The accompanying financia[ statements have Ьееп рrераrеd in ассоrdапсе with lnternational Fiпапсiа[
Reporting Standards (lFRSs) as approved Ьу the lnternationa[ Accounting Standards Board (lAS Board).

(Ь) Basis of evaluation

These financia[ statements have Ьееп рrераrеd in ассоrdапсе with the actual cost рriпсiрtе, with the
exception of financiaI assets at fair value through оthеr comprehensive income.
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(с) Fчпсtiопаl and presentation счrrепсу

The functional сurrепсу of the Bank is the Kazakhstan tenge (hereinafter - the tenge), which, being the
nationa[ счrrепсу of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan, best ref[ects the есопоmiс essence of most of the Bank's
operations апd re[ated circumstances affecting its activities.

The Kazakhstan tenge is also the presentation сurrепсу of these financiat statements. Alt data presented
in the tenge have been rоuпdеd to the пеаrеst thousand tenge unless otheмise stated.

(d) Use of professionaljudgements, accounting estimates and assumptions

The рrераrаtiоп of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of lFRSs requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the apptication of accounting
policies and the amount of assets and tiabitities, income and expenses рrеsепtеd in the financia[
statements. ActuaI results may differ frоm these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions аrе reviewed оп а rеgulаr basis. The estimate adjustments
аrе recognized in the reporting period iп which the estimates аrе revised and in апу subsequent periods
which they affect.

The information regarding significant estimation uncertainties and critica[ rеаsопаЬlе judgments in
apptying the accounting policies is provided in the following notes:

Note 12 - estimation of [оап impairment;
Note 13 - classification of financial assets at amortized cost;
Note 24 - fair value of financial instruments.

(е) Going сопсеrп

The accompanying financiaI statements have Ьееп рrераrеd оп the assumption of а going сопсеrп, which
imp[ies the disposal of assets and the sett[ement of tiabilities in the course of the оrdiпаry business of
the Bank. lп making this estimation, the Bank's management considered а wide rапgе of information
rеgаrdiпg сurrепt and future economic conditions, including projections fоr cash flows, earnings апd
capital rеsоurсеs.

3. MATERIAL lNFoRMATloN oN AccoUNTlNG PoLlclES

The accounting poticies described below have Ьееп apptied Ьу the Bank consistent[y throughout the
reporting periods presented in these financiaI statements.

(а) Fоrеigп exchange transactions

The foreign exchange transactions аrе trans[ated into the functional счrrепсу of the Bank at the
exchange rates prevailing оп the dates of transactions.

Monetary assets and liabitities denominated in foreign сurrепсу at the reporting date аrе translated into
the functional сurrепсу at the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Profit оr loss frоm
transactions with mопеtаry assets and tiabilities denominated iп foreign сurrепсу is а difference between
the amortized cost in the functiona[ сurrепсу at the beginning of the period adjusted Ьу the amount of
interest charged at the effective rаtе and payments during the period and amortized cost in foreign
счrrепсу trans[ated into the functional сurrепсу at the exchange rаtе at the end of the reporting period.

Nоп-mопеtаry assets and tiabitities denominated in foreign счrrепсу measured at fair ча[че аrе
translated into the functional сurrепсу at the exchange rates prevai[ing оп the dates of fair ча[че
mеаsurеmепt. Non-monetary assets and tiabitities denominated in foreign счrrепсу and rероrtеd at
actual costs аrе translated into the functiona[ счrrепсу at the ехсhапgе rаtе prevai[ing оп а transaction
date.
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The foreign exchange differences resulting frоm translation into the foreign сurrепсу аrе recognized iп
profit оr [oss.

(Ь) Financialinstruments

Financial assets and financiat tiabitities аrе recognized in the statement of financial position of the Bank
when the Вапk becomes а contracting party to the under[ying financial instrument. The Bank rероrts
rеgulаr acquisitions and disposals of financial assets and tiabitities using the accounting method at the
settlement date. FinanciaI instruments acquired in this way, which wi[l subsequently Ье measured at fair
value, аrе accounted for in the same way as the acquired instruments frоm the time of conc[usion of а
transaction until the setttement date set.

Financial assets and financiat liabilities аrе initia[ly rероrtеd at fair value. Transaction costs directly
attributab[e to the acquisition оr issue of financia[ assets апd financiat tiabitities (оthеr thап financia[
assets and financiat tiabitities reported at fair ча[че through profit оr loss (FVTPL)) respectively iпсrеаsе
оr decrease the fair value of financial assets оr financia[ [iabilities at initia[ recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributab[e to the acquisition of financiaI assets оr financiaI tiabitities rероrtеd at fair
value thrочgh profit оr [oss аrе reported directly in profit оr [oss. The accounting principles used to
subsequent[y mеаsurе the value of financia[ assets and financia[ liabitities аrе disc[osed in the relevant
accounting po[icies described be[ow.

FiпопсiаI cssets

А[[ financia[ assets аrе recognized and derecognised on а date of transaction when а financia[ asset is
purchased оr so[d uпdеr а contract the terms of which require de[ivery of the financial asset within the
time [imits set Ьу the rе[ечапt market апd аrе initiatty measured at fair value, plus transaction costs,
exc[uding those financial assets that аrе classified as measured at fair va[ue through profit оr loss.
Transaction costs direct[y attributab[e to the acquisition of financiaI assets c[assified as mеаsurеd at fair
ча[uе through profit оr loss are recognized immediately in profit оr [oss.

А[[ recognized financial assets that аrе within the scope of |FRS 9 Fiпапсiоl lпstrumепts must Ье
subsequent[y mеаsurеd at amortized cost оr fair value based on the Bank's business model for managing
financiaI assets and the сопtrасtча[ cash flow characteristics of financiaI assets.
At the same time:

Holding on osser to rесеivе сопtrосtчаl cosh flows.

This business model assumes that the financia[ assets аrе managed to realize cash flows Ьу receiving
payments of principa[ апd interest очеr the tife of the financiat instrument.

Uпdеr this business model, hotding а financiaI asset to maturity is а priority, but еаr[у disposal is not
prohibited.

Holding оп osset to receive controctual cosh flows апd sell fiпопсiоl ossets

This business model assumes that the management of financial assets is aimed at both receiving
contractual cash f[ows апd selling financial assets. Within this business model, the receipt of cash frоm
the sale of а financial asset is а рriоritу, which is characterized Ьу а higher frequency and чо[чmе of
sa[es compared to the business model of 'Holding ап asset to receive сопtrасtuа[ cash flows',

Within this business model, the goa[ of managing the financial assets сап Ье:

management fоr the рurроsе of realizing cash flows through the sale of financial assets;
tiquidity mапаgеmепt to meet daity funding needs;
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а portfolio the management and реrfогmапсе evatuation of which аrе based оп а fair vа[че; and
а portfo[io that meets the 'he[d fоr trade' definition. Fiпапсiа[ assets аге considered to Ье hetd
for trade if they have been acquired principatty fоr the purpose of setting in the пеаr term (up to
180 days), generating short-term profits, оr аrе financial derivatives (with the exception of а
financia[ guarantee оr derivative financial instruments, which hаче Ьееп identified as hedging
instrument).

lп ассоrdапсе with IFRS 9, the Bank's financial assets are classified as fo[[ows:

[oans granted to customers that аrе classified as assets measured at amortized cost аrе held within
а business model aimed at receiving contractuat cash flows that аrе so[ely payments of рriпсiра[
and interest оп рriпсiраl outstanding and which include so[ely payments оп account of рriпсiра[
and interest (SPPI);

cash and cash equivalents include cash banknotes and coins, unrestricted balances (поstrо
accounts) with the RK NB and оthеr banks, as we[[ as highty liquid financiaI assets with originaI
maturities of less than 3 months that аrе поt subject to significant risk of changes in fair ча[uе and
аrе used Ьу the Bank to sett[e сurrепt tiabilities. Cash and cash equivalents аrе rероrtеd at
amortized cost in the statement of financial position;
interbank [oans/deposits, REPO transactions аrе c[assified, as а rule, as assets measured at
amortized cost since they аrе managed within а business model aimed at receiving contractual
cash flows that include SPPl;
. debt securities may Ье classified into апу of three classification categories based оп the chosen
business model апd SPPl test compliance;
. equity securities аrе c[assified, as а ru[е, into the category of instruments measured at fair va[ue
with changes therein reported in profit оr [oss for the period; and
. tradin8 securities and derivative financiaI instruments аrе c[assified into the category of financiaI
assets measured at fаiг value with changes therein rероrtеd in profit оr [oss fоr the period.

Fiпопсiоl Iiobilities

Fiпапсiаl tiabitities аrе c[assified as either financial [iabi[ities at fair ча[че through profit and loss оr
оthеr financiat tiabitities.

А financia[ tiabitity is classified as held fоr trade if:

it is accepted fоr the рrimаry purpose of rерurсhаsе in the пеаr future;
when initia[[y recognized, it is а part of а portfolio of identified financiat instruments that аrе
managed Ьу the Bank as а sing[e portfolio that has а recent history of short-term purchases and
reselling, оr
it is а derivative instrument that is not c[assified апd is not used as а hedging instrument.

А financia[ liabitity оthеr than financial tiability оr contingent consideration that may Ье paid Ьу а
сustоmеr iп а business соmЬiпаtiоп he[d fоr trаdе mау Ье quatified as FWPL financial tiabitity at the
time of recognition if:

о

о

о

a

о

о

a

о

о

a

the use of such а c[assification e[iminates оr significantly reduces imba[ances iп the measurement
of оr accounting fоr the assets оr liabilities that might otheмise arise;
а financial liability is а раrt of а group of financial assets оr financiat tiabitities оr а group of
financia[ assets апd tiabilities that аrе managed and measured оп the basis of а fair value in
ассоrdапсе with the Bank's documented risk management оr investment strategy and the
information about such а group of financia[ tiabitities is presented within the organization оп this
basis; оr
а financial tiabitity is а part of ап instrument containing опе оr mоrе embedded derivatives, and
IFRS 9 a[tows the instrument as а whole (asset оr liabitity) to Ье classified as measured at fair value
with recognizing changes therein in the statement of profit оr [oss.

о
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Fiпапсiа[ assets and financiat tiabitities measured at fair va[ue through profit оr [oss аrе accounted fоr
in the statement of financia[ position at fair value. Changes in fair value аrе rероrtеd iп net toss/(profit)
оп financiaI assets and liabilities measured at fair va[ue through profit оr [oss, lпtеrеst еаrпеd оr iпсurrеd
is recognized as interest iпсоmе оr ехрепsе, as аррrорriаtе, in ассоrdапсе with the terms of а contract,
white dividend income is rесоrdеd in Other income when the right to rесеiче dividends is established.

Debt iпstrumепts ot omortized cost оr ot fоir value through other соmрrеhепsiче iпсоmе

The Bank assesses the c[assification and measurement of а financial asset based оп the characteristics
provided Ьу the cash f[ow contract and the Bank's business model used to manage the asset.

То classify and measure ап asset at amortized cost оr at fair value through other comprehensive income,
the terms of the relevant contract must provide fоr the оссurrепсе of cash flows that inc[ude so[ely
payment of рriпсiра[ and interest оп the рriпсiра[ outstanding.

When revising the contractua[ cash flows for compliance with the specified requirements, the рriпсiра[
outstanding is considered as а fair ча[че of а financial asset at its initial recognition. During the life of а
financial asset, the principa[ debt may сhапgе (fоr example, in the case of principal payments). lnterest
includes consideration fоr the time value of mопеу, for the credit risk of principaI remaining outstanding
for а specified period of time, and for other поrmаl risks апd costs associated with lending, as we[[ as а

рrоfit mаrgiп. The payments of рriпсiра[ and interest аrе measured in а счrrепсу in which а financia[
asset is denominated.

The contractual cash flows, which inc[ude sole[y payments of principa[ and interest, comp[y with the
terms of ап underlying lоап сопtrасt. Сопtrасtчаl terms that give rise to risks оr volati[ity in contractual
cash flows that аrе not related to the underlying loan сопtrасt, such as shаrе оr commodity рriсе risk,
do not give risе to contractual cash f[ows that inc[ude sotely payment of principal and interest оп the
principa[ outstanding. An originated or acquired financial asset may Ье the underlying [оап contract,
whether оr not it is а loan in its [ega[ fоrm.

The business models used to manage financial assets was assessed at the date of first adoption of |FRS 9
to classify а financiaI asset. The business modeI has been apptied retrospectively to alI financiaI assets
recognized in the Bank's Ьа[апсе sheet at the date of first adoption of lFRS 9. The business model used
Ьу the Bank is defined at а level that reflects how the grouped financia[ assets are managed to achieve
а particular business objective. Since the Bank's business mode[ is поt subject to the management's
intentions fоr ап individuaI instrument, the assessment is not made at the [eve[ of individuaI instruments,
but at а higher [eve[ of aggregation.

То mапаgе its financiaI instruments, the Вапk uses severaI business models that describe the mechanism
fоr managing financial assets in оrdеr to gепеrаtе cash flows. These business models determine whether
cash flows of the Bank wil[ resu[t from the receipt of contractual cash flows, the sa[e of financial assets,
оr both.

When assessing а business mode[, the Bank takes into account а[[ available information. Ноwечеr, the
assessment is поt based оп scenarios that the Bank сап rеаsопаЬlу expect to оссur, such as а 'worst
case' оr 'stress' sсепаriо. The Bank takes into account а[[ rеlечапt data, such as:

а mechanism fоr evaluating the effectiveness of the business mode[ and the financial assets held
within that business model and rероrtiпg to key mапаgеmепt реrsоппе[;
risks affecting the effectiveness of the business model (and the financiaI assets held within that
business modet) and how those risks аrе managed; and
the mechanism fоr paying remuneration to management (for ехаmр[е, the grounds fоr paying
rеmuпеrаtiоп аrе analysed: а fair va[ue of rеlечапt assets оr contractual cash flows received).

At initiat recognition of а financial asset, the Bank determines whether newly recognized financiaI assets
аrе раrt of ап existing business model оr indicate the еmеrgепсе of а new business model. The Bank
reviews its business models in each rероrtiпg period to identify changes frоm the previous period. ln the
счrrепt reporting period, the Bank did not rечеа[ апу changes in its business models.
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Upon derecognition of а debt instrument measured at fair ча[че through other comprehensive income,
the cumulative profit/loss previously recognized in оthеr comprehensive income is rec[assified frоm
equity to profit оr [oss. Debt instruments that, after initia[ recognition, аrе measured at amortized cost
оr at fair ча[че through оthеr comprehensive income аrе subject to impairment.

(ii) Dеrесоgпitiоп

The Bank derecognises а financial asset whеп it loses its contractual rights to cash flows frоm that
financial asset, оr when it transfers а financial asset in а transaction in which substantially а[[ the risks
and rеwаrds of ownership of the financial asset аrе trапsfеrrеd to the оthеr party, оr in which the Bank
does not transfer оr rеtаiп substantia[[y att the risks and rеwаrds incidental to ownership of that financiat
asset and does not rеtаiп сопtrоl of the financial asset. Any interest in trапsfеrrеd financial assets that
quatify fоr derecognition created оr retained Ьу the Bank is recognized as а separate asset оr tiabitity in
the statement of financiat position. The Вапk derecognizes а financiat tiabitity when the contractuaI
tiabitities оп it аrе discharged, cancel[ed оr terminated.

The Bank епtеrs into transactions whеrеЬу it transfers the assets recognized in the statement of financial
position, but retains а[[ оr раrt of the risks and rеwаrds arising from ownership of the transferred assets.

Whi[e retaining all оr substantialty att the risks and rewards, the Bank does not derecognize the
transferred assets. lп transactions whеге the Bank does поt retain, but does not trапsfеr substantia[ly all
the risks and rеwаrds of ownership of а financial asset, that asset is deгecognized if the Bank has [ost
сопtrоl of the asset.

lf the Bank retains сопtrо[ of the asset when it is trапsfеrrеd, it continues to recognize the asset to the
extent that it retains ап interest in the asset, which is determined as ап extent to which the Bank is
exposed to changes in its va[ue.

The Bank writes off he assets that аrе recognized as uncol[ectible.

(iii) Assets апd liobilities offset

FinanciaI assets and tiabitities аrе offset and presented in the statement of financiaI position оп а net
basis опlу whеп the Bank счrrепtlу has ап епfоrсеаЬtе right to offset the recognized amounts and intends
to either sett[e them оп а net basis оr dispose of the asset and settle the tiability at the same time. The
Вапk сurrепtlу has а legally епfоrсеаЬ[е right to set off unless this right is conditiona[ on а future event
and is legatly епfоrсеаЬlе both in the поrmа[ сочrsе of business and in case of а default оп [iabitities,
insolvency оr Ьапkruрtсу of the Bank оr апу of its counterparties.

(iv) lmроirmепt

lmpairment fоr financial assets was calcu[ated taking into account the fol[owing factors:

То ca[culate the amount of expected credit losses (ECLs), the Bank eva[uates the loans оп а case-
by-case basis and on а grочр basis with grouping the assets based оп the gепеrаl characteristics of
credit risk.
ECLs аrе estimates of the рrеsепt va[ue of credit [osses given their probabitity. The estimate of
these losses is the present va[ue of а difference between the cash f[ows due to the Bank чпdеr а
contract and the cash f[ows that the Вапk expects to receive based оп а probabitity anatysis of а
пumьеr of economic scenarios, discounted using the effective interest rаtе fоr the rе[ечапt asset.
The calculation is based оп rеаsопаь[е and substantiated iпfоrmаtiоп that сап Ье obtained without
undue cost оr effort. The ca[cu[ation of the сurrепt ча[че of the expected future cash flow of а
co[latera[ized financial asset reflects the cash f[ow that coutd result from епfоrсеmепt minus the
costs of obtaining and епfоrсiпg the соl[аtеrа[ whether оr not enforcement is рrоьаьtе. The
provisions аrе based оп the Bank's own loss analysis ехреriепсе and management's assumptions
about the lеvеl of losses that аrе tikety to Ье recognized for aSSetS iп each credit risk category
based оп the capability to service а debt and the Ьоrrоwеr's credit history.
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о The impairment for trеаsurу operations (investments in debt securities, rечеrsе REPO transactions,
interbank loans апd deposits, operations оп соrrеsропdепt accounts, receivab[es оп treasury
operations) is calculated taking into account the rating of а counterparty, the probabitity of
default, the tеrm of а transaction and the tevel of loss at default.
The expected credit losses оп treasury operations аrе measured оп а case-by-case basis (except
fоr certain c[aims in the fоrm of receivables).

Financial assets аrе segmented into baskets in accordance with the fol[owing аррrоасh:

Stage 1 : the credit risk has not increased significantly since the recognition of ап asset; impairment
is recognized in the amount of expected losses очеr the next '12 months;
Stage 2: the credit risk has increased significantly since the recognition of ап asset; impairment is
recognized in the amount of expected [osses очеr the епtirе life of а financial asset;
Stage 3: The financial asset is in default оr has indications of impairment.

Proyisfons for expected credit losses

The expected credit losses must Ье estimated using ап аllоwапсе the чаlче of which is equal to:

the amount of credit losses expected очеr the пехt'|2 months i.e. that роrtiоп of credit losses
очеr the entire tife of а financiaI iпstrumепt that rерrеsепts expected credit [osses due to defaults
оп liabitities under the instrument that mау arise within 12 months after the rероrtiпg date (Stage
1);

the аmочпt of credit [osses expected очеr the entire life of а financial instrument, which arise as
а resu[t of a[l possible cases of defau[t оп [iabilities under ап iпstrчmепt during term thereof (Stage

2 and Stage 3).

The creation of an al[owance in the amount of total EcLs for the епtirе life of а financial instrument is
required in the ечепt of а significant iпсrеаsе in the credit risk of the instrument since its initial
recognition. lп all оthеr cases, the provisions fоr ECLs аrе formed in the amount equa[ to the ECLs within
'l2 months.

Fоr чпdrаwп credit, ECLs аrе as difference between the рrеsепt value of the difference between
the contractua[ cash flows due to the Bank if the holder of а commitment draws the credit апd
the cash flows the Bank expects to rесеiче if the credit is drawn.
Fоr financial guarantee contracts, ECLs аrе а difference between the expected payments to
indemnify а hоldег of guaranteed debt instrument less апу amounts that the Bank expects to
rесеiче frоm holder, Ьоrrоwеr оr any other party.

ECLs аrе estimated fоr individual loans оr portfo[ios of loans with simitar гisk characteristics. The
calculation of ап al[owance fоr ECLs (whether оп а case-by-case basis оr on а grоuр basis) is based оп
the рrеsепt ча[че of the expected cash flows for the asset using the original effective interest rate (ElR).

When determining ECLs, it is ехtrеmеlу important to use the definition of а defautt. The definition of а
defau[t is used to estimate the amount of EcLs and to determine if an al[owance is calculated fоr the
next 1 2 months оr fоr the епtirе tеrm of the [оап, since the concept of 'а defau[t' is а раrt of the concept
of 'probability of а defal[t', which affects both the estimate of ECLs and identificatlon of а significabt
iпсrеаsе in credit risk.

Definition of а default

Financial assets in defau[t Ьеаr the maximum credit risk, and thеrе is по possibitity of recovery within
the original time limits set, restructuring оr, in the absence of prospects for 

-such 
restructuring,

recognition of loss in futl оr iп part is required. Deterioration of the financial condition of thъ
issuеr/ьоrrоwеr be[ow а сritiсаl [ече[ includes significant [osses, а decrease in mаrkеt shаrе, the cost of
capital fatting below zеrо.

a

a

a

a
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Due to the specificity of each of the financiaI assets in the Bank's portfo[io, the decision оп recognition
of default is made after being considered Ьу the Credit Committee of the Вапk оп а case-by-case basis.
As а ru[е, this decision is made as а result of events that hаче happened оr аrе highly tikety to Ье
expected.

The qualitative factors for the impairment of financia[ assets may include the suspension of ассruаl of
rеmчпеrаtiоп due to the deterioration of the financial condition of а сочпtеrраrtу, the write-off of а
part апd/оr fu[[ amount outstanding, which is caused Ьу а significant increase in credit risk since the
provision of the financial asset, the sale of financial assets with а significant discount (15% оr mоrе),
[оап rеstrчсturiпg, filing а lawsuit fоr recognizing а соuпtеrраrtу as а bankrupt, as well as the
disappearance of ап active market fоr а security, а decrease iп the vaIue of со[[аtеrа[ оr other оЬsеrчаЬ[е
data.

lf the terms of а bank [оап to а customer аrе renegotiated so that it becomes substantia[ly а new [оап,
the Bank recognizes the derecognition of such financiaI asset, whi[e recognizing the difference frоm the
derecognition of the asset to the a[lowance fоr expected credit losses in profit оr [oss. At initiat
recognition, loans to customers аrе c[assified at stage 1 for the рчrроsе of measuring expected credit
[osses, excluding loans grапtеd and classified as POCl (Purchased оr Originated Credit lmpaired Financia[
Assets). lf the modification does not result in а significant change in Cash F[ows, then the [оап wi[[ поt
tеrmiпаtе.

As of 3'| DесеmЬеr 2024, the amount of ассгuеd interest оп restructured loans was 27,954 thousand
tenge (З'| December 2023:23,395 thousand tenge).

As at З1 DесеmЬеr 2024, loans to customers included loans whose terms were restructured in the amount
of 468,926 thousand tenge (31 December 202З: 81 1,987 thousand tenge).

(v) Credit-impoiredfinoncialossets

А financial asset is considered to Ье credit-impaired if опе оr mоrе events оссur that have а negative
impact оп the estimated future cash f[ows of such financia[ asset. lп re[ation to credit-impaired financial
assets, the tеrm 'Stage 3 assets' is used. The indicators of credit impairment include observable data оп
the following events:

significant financiaI difficulties of the Ьоrrоwеr оr lепdеr;
vio[ation of the terms of а contract, such as default or late payment;
the [епdеr making а concession to the Ьоrrоwеr for economic reasons оr contractual terms due to
the financiat difficutties of the Ьоrrоwеr that the lепdеr would not otherwise have made;
the disappearance of ап active market fоr the security as а result of financial difficu[ties; оr
purchasing а financial asset at lаrgе discount that ref[ects the credit [osses iпсurrеd.

lп some cases, the identification of а single ечепt is поt possib[e because the credit impairment of а
fiпапсiа[ asset mау Ье due to the combined effect of sечеrа[ events. At each reporting date, the Bank
assesses fоr credit impairment the debt instruments, which аrе financia[ assets measured at amortized
cost оr at fair ча[uе through оthеr comprehensive income. lп assessing the credit impairment of
gочеrпmепt and соrроrаtе debt instruments, the Bank considers factors such as bond yields, сrеdit
ratings and the Ьоrrоwег's ability to raise funds.

А loan is considered to Ье credit-impaired if а concession is grапtеd to the Ьоrrоwеr due to deterioration
in financia[ condition, provided thеrе is по evidence that the concession resulted in а significant
reduction in the risk of not receiving contractua[ cash flows, and по оthеr indicators of impairment exist.
Financia[ assets for which concession has Ьееп considered but not granted аrе considered to Ье credit-
impaired if thеrе аrе observab[e indicators of credit impairment, inctuding those matching the definition
of а defau[t. The definition of а default includes indicators of the [ack of probability of payment and the
expiration of the payment period (iп case of delay for 90 days оr mоrе). The decision to use cross default
is based оп an individual assessment of the conditions of the customer's object, such as collatera[ and
materiality of the credit risk.

a

a

о

a
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(с) Рrореrtу, plant and equipment

(i) Own assets

The items of рrореrtу, p[ant and equipment аrе rероrtеd in the financia[ statements at actua[ cost [ess
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. lf ап item of рrореrtу, plant and equipment consists
of severa[ components with different useful lives, such соmропепts аrе rероrtеd as separate items of
рrореrtу, plant and equipment.

(ii) Dерrесiаtiоп

Depreciation is charged оп рrореrtу, p[ant and equipment оп а dec[ining ba[ance method at the rates,
in the amount not exceeding70% for а[[ types of рrореrtу, plant and equipment, except fоr cases whеrе
the life of the item of рrореrtу, plant and equipment is determined Ьу special conditions for the use of
that item of рrореrtу, p[ant and equipment and is presented iп profit оr [oss. Depreciation is charged
from а date of acquisition of the item and, for items of рrореrtу, plant and equipment erected in house,
frоm the moment the construction of the object is completed and it is ready for operation. Land plots
аrе not depreciated.

lf the Bank makes ап investment in [eased рrореrtу, plant апd equipment, such costs аrе amortized оп
а straight-[ine basis очеr the shorter of the [ease tеrm оr the useful tife of the improvements to the
leased рrореrtу.

(d) lntangible assets

Acquired intangible assets аrе reported in the financial statements at actual cost [ess accumulated
amortization and impairment losses. The costs of acquiring licenses for special software and its
imp[ementation аrе capitalized in the cost of the соrrеsропdiпg intangible asset.

Amortization is charged оп intangib[e assets using the declining Ьа[апсе method at the rates, in the
amount not exceeding20% for а[[ types of intangibte assets, except fоr cases whеrе the useful life of ап
intangible asset is determined Ьу specia[ conditions fоr the use of this intangible asset and is presented
in profit оr [oss.

(е) Lease

The Bank, as а lessee, recognizes а гight-of-use asset, which is the right to use the assets, апd а tiabi[ity,
which is а tiabitity on lease payments.

Fоr а[[ [ease contracts (except for those specified below), the Bank:

recognizes in the statement of financial position the right-of-use assets and the [ease tiabi[ities in
'Рrореrtу, plant and equipment' and 'Other [iabilities', respectively;
recognizes in the statement of profit and loss the amortization of the right-of-use assets as
deterioration and amortization expenses in 'Operating expenses' and interest оп [ease tiabitities
in 'lnterest expenses'; апd
separates in the statement of cash flows the totaI cash used to rерау рriпсiраl (represented in
financing activities) and interest (represented iп operating activities).

The right-to-use assets аrе tested for imраirmепt in ассоrdапсе with lAS Зб Asset lmроirmепt.
Fоr short-term leases (up to 12 months) and [ow-value teases of assets, the Bank recognizes lease
expenses on а straight-[ine basis.

Lease incentive payments (fоr examp[e, а free (grасе) period) аrе recognized as раrt of the measurement
of the right-of-use assets апd the tease liabilities at initial recognition.

a

a

a
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(f) Assets held for sale

Nоп-счrrепt assets and tiabitities directly re[ated to поп-сurrепt assets аrе c[assified as he[d for sale
('disposal group') if it is likety that the сurrепt value of such assets witt Ье rесочеrеd рrimаri[у through
the sale of these assets, but not through their реrmапепt use, as we[[ as if such assets (оr disposal group)
mау Ье disposed of iп their сurrепt condition. The management must Ье committed to se[[ing such assets
within опе уеаr frоm а date these assets аrе c[assified as held fоr sa[e.

Assets he[d for sale аrе measured at the [оwеr of their сurrепt and fair value, less sel[ing expenses. lп
case the fair ча[uе of ап asset held for sa[e, less se[ling expenses, is less than its сurrепt va[ue, the entity
must recognize the impairment loss in the statement of profit and losses as [oss from assets held fоr sa[e.
Апу subsequent iпсrеаsе in the asset's fair value, less selling expenses, is recognized in the amount of
the accumu[ated impairment [oss previously recognized fоr those assets.

(g) lmpairment of поп-fiпапсiаl assets

Non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, аrе tested fоr impairment at each rероrtiпg date.
The rесочеrаЬlе amount of поп-fiпапсiа[ assets is the higher of fair value [ess se[ling expenses and vatue
in use. lп determining the ча[uе in use, estimated future cash flows аrе discounted to their рrеsепt value
using а pre-tax discount rаtе that ref[ects the счrrепt market estimate of the time ча[uе of mопеу and
the risks incidental to the asset. Fоr ап asset that does not generate cash f[ows generated Ьу other
assets, the rесочеrаЬlе amount is determined Ьу the grоuр of cash generating assets to which the asset
belongs. The impairment [oss is recognized when the саrryiпg amount of а cash,generating asset оr grоuр
of cash-generating assets exceeds its rесочеrаЬ[е amount.

дtt impairment losses of non-financial assets аrе recognized in profit оr loss and аrе оп[у rечеrsеd if thеrе
has Ьееп а change iп the estimates used to determine the rесочеrаЬ[е аmочпt. Апу impairment loss of
ап asset is rечеrsеd to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed the саrryiпg
amount ([ess amortization) that would have оссчrrеd had the impairment loss not Ьееп reported in the
financiaI statements.

(h) Provisions

А provision is rероrtеd in the statement of financial position when the Bank has а legal оr rеаsопаЬlе

tiabitity as а result of past event and it is рrоЬаЬlе that ап outflow of funds wi[[ Ье required to settle
that tiability. lf the аmочпt of such tiabitity is significant, then provisions аrе determined Ьу discounting
estimated future cash flows using а pre-tax discount rate that reflects the счrrепt market estimate of
the time value of mопеу апd, where applicable, the risks incidenta[ to the tiabitity.

(i) Contingent credit liabilities

lп the сочrsе of its счrrепt business activities, the Bank assumes contingent credit tiabitities inc[uding
undrawn credit facilities, [etters of credit and guarantees, and provides оthеr forms of credit iпsчrапсе.

Financial guarantees аrе сопtrасts that obtige the Bank to make specified payments to compensate а

holder of а financia[ guarantee for losses iпсurrеd because а specified debtor faits to make payment
when due in ассоrdапсе with the terms of а debt instrument,

А tiabitity uпdеr а financial guаrапtее is initiatty recognized at fair va[ue less the associated transaction
costs and subsequent[y measured at the higher of the amount initiatty recognized [ess accumu[ated
depreciation оr the provision for possible losses under the guarantee. Provisions for possible [osses чпdеr
financia[ guarantees and other сrеdit tiabitities аrе recognized whеп thеrе is а high probability of
оссчrrепсе of [osses and such [osses сап Ье mеаsчrеd with а rеаsопаЬlе degree of reliability.

Liabitities uпdеr financiaI guarantees and provisions fоr оthеr credit tiabitities аrе included in other
tiabitities.
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Lending tiabitities аrе not recognized in the financiat statements except for the fo[lowing

commitments to grапt loans, which the Bank defines as financiaI liabitities at fair value the changes
in which аrе rероrtеd in profit оr [oss fоr the period;
if the Bank has а past ехреriепсе of selling the assets acquired in connection with [oan
commitments, shortty after they arise, similar to the [оап commitments be[onging to the same
class of instruments that are considered as derivative fiпапсiа[ instruments;
lоап commitments that аrе settled according to а contract оп а net basis in cash оr Ьу trапsfеr оr
issue of another financial instrument; оr
[оап commitments at а rаtе below the mаrkеt one.

(j) Shаrе capital

(i) Оrdiпаry shores

The ordinary shаrеs аrе classified as equity. Costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares
апd share options аrе recognized as а decrease iп equity less апу tax effects.

(ii) Dividend

The abitity of the Bank to declare and рау dividends is subject to the regulation of the effective
[egis[ation of the Repub[ic of Kazakhstan.

Dividend оп ordinary shares аrе recognized in the financia[ statements as а use of retained еаrпiпgs when
dес[аrеd.

(k) Taxation

The income tax inc[udes счrrепt tax and deferred tax. lпсоmе tax is recognized in profit оr loss in fu[[,
with the exception of amounts re[ating to transactions recognized in оthеr соmрrеhепsiче income оr
transactions with оwпеrs recognized directly in equity, which, respectively, аrе reported in other
comprehensive income оr direct[y in equity.

Сurrепt income tax expenses аrе ca[culated based оп the estimated taxable profit for the уеаr taking
into account the income tax rates in fоrсе at the rероrtiпg date, as well as the tiabitities arising frоm
the adjustment of income tax amounts fоr previous rероrtiпg уеаrs.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax tiabitities аrе recognized fоr tеmроrаry differences arising between
the саrryiпg amount of assets and tiabitities determined for the purposes of their presentation in the
financial statements and their tax base. Dеfеrrеd tax assets and dеfеrrеd tax tiabitities аrе поt
recognized fоr the following temporary differences: differences re[ating to assets апd tiabitities the
initiat recognition of which does not affect either accounting оr taxable profit. The dеfеrrеd tax assets
and deferred tax tiabitities аrе determined based on the tax rаtеs that witt appty in the fчtчrе at the
time of the rечеrsаl of the tеmроrаry differences, based оп the laws in effect оr substantially enacted
at the reporting date.

The ca[cu[ation of deferred tax assets and deferred tax tiabitities reflects the tax implications that
depend оп the mаппеr iп which the Bank is going to rесочеr оr settle the carrying amount of assets and
tiabilities at the end of the rероrtiпg period.

Dеfеrrеd tax assets аrе recognized to the extent that it is рrоЬаЬ[е that sufficient taxable profit witt Ье
generated in the future to сочеr the tеmроrаry differences, поп-rесоrdеd tax expenses and unused tax
benefits.

The dеfеrrеd tax assets аrе reduced to the extent that it is not рrоЬаЬ[е that taxab[e profit witt Ье
avai[ab[e against which the deductib[e tеmроrаry differences сап Ье used.

о

о
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(l) Recognition of income and expenses in the financia[ statements

lnterest income and expenses оп a[l financial instruments, except for financial assets mеаsurеd at fair
value through profit оr [oss, аrе recognized in Net interest income as lnterest income calculated using
the effective interest method and lnterest expenses in the statement of profit and losses using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest rаtе is а rate that discounts the estimated future cash flows of а financia[
instrument to the net саrryiпg amount очеr the expected life of а financial asset оr tiabitity оr (if
appticable) очеr а shоrtеr period. Fчturе cash flows are estimated taking into ассочпt а[[ сопtrасtuаl
conditions of the instrument.

lf а financiaI asset оr а group of financiaI assets has Ьееп written off (оr partially written off) as а resutt
of ап impairment, interest income is determined using the interest rate used to discount futurе cash
f[ows to calcu[ate impairment losses to the net amortized cost of that financia[ asset. lf default оп а
financial asset is tiquidated and it is по lопgеr credit-impaired, the Вапk reverts to calcu[ating interest
income оп а gross basis.

Fее income is rероrtеd as а trапsfеr of services to customers in ап amount that reflects а consideration
expected to Ье received iп exchange fоr such services. The Bank defines а реrfоrmапсе ob[igation id est

the services agreed uроп with а customer and а consideration, and recognizes income in ассоrdапсе with
the transfer of services, реrfоrmапсе obligation agreed uроп with the счstоmеr.

Fоr each реrfоrmапсе obtigation identified, the Bank determines at the time of contract сопсlusiоп
whether lt tutrils реrfоrmапсе obtigation within specified time [imit оr at а specified point in time, and

whether the consideration is fixed оr чаriаЬlе, inctuding the [imitation of rеimЬursеmепt, fог example,
ьу ехtеrпаl factors not related to the influence of the Bank. The reimbursement is subsequently allocated
to the identified реrfоrmапсе obligation.

The оthеr fees, as we[[ as other income and expenses, аrе recognized in profit оr [oss on the date the
related service is provided.

Payments uпdеr operating lease сопtrасts аrе recognized in profit оr [oss for the period оп а straight-

tine basis очеr the entire lease tеrm. The аmочпt of benefits received reduces the total lease expenses
for епtirе [ease tеrm.

(m) Financial guarantee contracts

Financiat guarantees оr letters of credit provided Ьу the Bank аrе collatera[ for credit transactions that
provide foi payment as compensation fоr а loss that is incurred if а debtor fails to make рауmепt in due

itme in ассоrdапсе with the originat оr modified terms of а debt instrument. Such financial guarantees

оr [etters of credit аrе initiatty rероrtеd at fair va[ue. 5ubsequent[y, they аrе measured оп the basis of
(а) the аmочпt recognized as а provision and (Ь) the amount initiatty recognized, [ess, where applicab[e,
accumulated аmоrtйаtiоп of deferred income in the fоrm of а рrеmium received uпdеr а financia[
guarantee оr letters of credit, whichever is grеаtеr.

(n) дdорtiоп of пеw and amended lnternationa[ Fiпапсiаl Reporting Standards (lFRSs)

д пчmЬеr of new standards come into effect for annual periods beginning оп or after 1 January 2025,

with the option of еаr[у adoption. However, the Bank has not еаr[у adopted the new and amended
standards in the рrераrаtiоп of these financiaI statements.
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lFRS 18 wi[[ rер[асе lAS ,l "Presentation of Financia[ Statements" and wi[t apply to аппuаl reporting periods
beginning оп оr after ,l January 2027 . The пеw standard introduces the following key new requirements:

Entities must classify alt income and expenses into five categories in the statement of profit оr
[oss, паmе[у: operating activities, investing activities, financing activities, discontinued
operations, and income tax. Entities must also рrеsепt а пеw standardized subtota[, "ореrаtiпg
profit." The net profit of entities wi[[ rеmаiп unchanged.
Management-defined реrfоrmапсе mеаsurеs (MPMs) must Ье disclosed in а single dedicated note
in the financiaI statements.
Enhanced guidance is provided оп grочрiпg information within the financiaI statements.

Дdditionalty, а[[ entities must use the operating profit subtota[ as the starting point in the statement of
cash flows when presenting cash flows frоm operating activities using the indiгect method.

The Bank is stilt in the рrосеss of assessing the impact of the new standard, particu[arly сопсеrпiпg the
structure of its statement of comprehensive iпсоmе, statement of cash flows, and additional disclosures
required fоr management-defined реrfоrmапсе measures. The Bank is also evaluating the impact оп how
information is grouped in the financiaI statements, including items сurrепtlу classified as "оthеr."

These amendments аrе intended to improve disclosure of accounting policies and assist чsеrs of financiaI
statements in distinguishing between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting poticies.

The Bank is счrrепt[у assessing the impact these amendments may have оп the disclosure of information
about the Bank's accounting po[icies.

4. lNTEREST lNcoME/(ExPENSE)

zo24 2о2з
lnterest income
Cash and cash equivalents
Loans grапtеd to customers
Fiпапсiа[ assets at amortized cost
FinanciaI assets at fair ча[uе through оthеr comprehensive iпсоmе
Loans issued to banks
Accounts and deposits with banks

Total interest iпсоmе
lnterest ехрепsеs
Сurrепt accounts апd deposits of customers
Fее оп loans
Liabitity оп lease
Liabitities оп REPO contracts
Total interest ехрепsе
Total net interest income

7,1 88

1о7,926,842 62,z70,849,

(6з,74о,7о4) (38,039,864)

1 86"t 38 24,zз0,985

5. NET рRоFlт FRом FoRElGN сURRENcY TRANSAсT|oNS

2о24 2023

2,657,99z

a

a

91 ,489,7зб
10,90,1,3з5

5, 528,58з

27,557,зz0
6, 1 84,61 з

28,408,008
15,032

1,з89
104,487

(62,4,13,396)

(1,z99,17з)
(28,1 з5)

(з6,240, ,t 89)
(1,701,249)

(30,1 55)
(68,271)

44,

Dea[ing transactions, net
Fоrеigп exchange differences, net
Total пеt profit from fоrеigп счrrепсу transactions

,l 
,532,590

48,7з8 41 921

2з

1 58,| 328 2,699,913

IFRS 18 "Presentation and Disclosure iп Fiпапсiаl Statements"
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6. PERSoNNEL EXPENSES

Employee benefits
Taxes and withholdings frоm sa[ary
Total реrsоппеl expenses

7. PRovlSloNS FоR EXPEсTED cREDlT LoSSES

2о24 2о2з

1,056,606 -
,l06,785

FinanciaI assets
at fair value

through оthеr
comprehensive

income

018 , 1,,l63,391

оthеr Total
assets

136 2,2об 195,62б

408

Cash and
cash

equivalents

AccountS
and

deposits
with
banks

Loans
grапtеd to
customers

Financial
assets at

amortized
cost

As of 1 January 2023 4,217 91 185,814 з,162

Forming provisions
Recovering provisions
Fоrеigп exchange
difference
Write-off
As of 31 DесеmЬеr 2023

68,31 6
(6з,211)

(111)

,|16

(117)
265,097

(159,712| (1 з6)
4,47з

(5,472)

(482)
з4

395,857
(283,814)

57,855
(55,1 66)

G5] (4)
(482)
(1 16)

9 ,211 90 291,164 5,847 759 зо7,о71

Fоrm,iпg provisions
Recovering provisions
Write-off
Fоrеigп exchange
difference
As of З'| DесеmЬеr 2024

21 9,899
(214,72з|

3,з,l 1

(з, з 14)
z51 ,841

(2,1 3,1 00)
(25,1 40)

226,805
(29,413)

741,8з1
(487,3з7)
(25,140)

466 - (4| 462
1а,85з 8? 30+,?65 l

During 2024, rеsеrчеs wеrе formed fоr 64,599 thousand tenge and rеsеryеs wеrе restored for 69,386
thousand tenge (2023: reseryes wеrе formed for 25,355 thousand tenge and rеsеryеs wеrе restored for
ZЗ,07 1 thousand tenge).

24
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Movements in accumu[ated provisions for expected credit [osses оп [оапs grапtеd to customers аrе presented as follows

2о24

Stcge 1 Stage 2 Sfoge 3 Total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stoge 3

2оzз

Loons grапtеd to сustоmеrs
Balance as of 1 Jапчаrу
Reclassified as Stage 1

Reclassified as Stage 2

Rec[assified as Stage З

Net changes in provisions
Acquisition of new financial assets
Foreign exchange difference
Ваlапсе as of 31 December

Total
11,758

154
(4,182)

(591)
(1,657)

4,167

z,156
(129)

4,з77

277,z5o
(25)

(140)
59,1

(74,451)
84,071

z91,164

(75,952)

89,5 5з

11,785
5

(582)
(144)

(7,818)

8,547
(35)

17з,з75
(5)

144
(1 1 0,382)

214,118

185,814

(,l17,280)

22z,665
(з 5)

654

582

92;156
1,з15

9,649

Movements in accumulated provisions fоr expected credit losses fоr 7074 оп financia[ assets аrе presented as fo[[ows:

FiпапсiаI ossets ot FiпапсiаI cssets at fоir Cash опd cosh
amortized cost volue through оthеr equivalents

соmрrеhепsiче iпсоmе

7,82о 287,296 зо4,765 11,758 2,156 277,25о z91 ,164

дссоuпts qпd
deposits with

bcnks

Other
ossets*

Сопtiпgепt
credit liabiIities

Stoge 1 Stoge 1 Stoge 1 Stoge l Totol Stage 12о24
Ваlапсе as of 1 Jапчаrу
Reclassified as Stage 1

Reclassified as Stage 2

Reclassified as Stage 3

Net changes in provisions
Acquisition of new financial assets
Fоrеigп exchange difference
Balance as of 31 DесеmЬеr

5,847

(5,465)
18,653

9,z11

(7,734)
1 з, з76

90

(3)

759

1,200
(759)

196,947

4,9z9

(4,929)
1з8

,l 9,0з5 1 4,85з

other assets- ;

- the net сhапgе iп Stage 1 - 159 thousand tenge, in stage 2 - 600 thousand tenge, total - 759 thousand tenge.
- new financial assets acquisitions iп stage 1 - 321 thousand tenge, Stage з - 196,62б thousand tenge, tota[ , 196,947 thousand tenge

87 198,147 138

о_l

Ф:чоо
ýýЕ
ý,lo

I t I l l I I
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I

Movements in accumulated provisions fоr expected credit [osses fоr 202З оп financial assets аrе presented as fo[[ows:

Fiпопсiоl cýýets сt FiпqпсiаI csýefý ot foir Cash опd Дссоuпts Other ossefs*
omortized cost volue through оthеr cosh опd deposits

соmрrеhепsiче iпсоmе equivoleпts with Ьопks

Сопtiпgепt
credit Iiobilities

Stoge 1 Stage 1 Stoge 1 Stage 1 Totol Stage 12о23

Ваlапсе as of 1 Jапчаrу
Rectassified as Stage ,|

Reclassified as Stage 2
Reclassified as Stage 3
Net changes in provisions
Acquisition of new financial assets
Fоrеigп exchange difference
Balance as of 31 December

з,1 62

(2,832 )

5,517

1зб 4,217

(3,203)
8,197

91

(44l
4з

2,zoб

(2,206)
725
з4

z,645

(2,645)
4,9z9

с

зб

5,847 9,211 759 4,929

Other assets*:
- пеt changes iп provisions at Stage'| - 69 thousand tenge, at Stage Z- 482 thousand tenge, at Stage З - 1,655 thousand tenge, total -2,206 thousand tenge,
- acquisition of new fiпапсiаl assets at Stage 1 - 125 thousand tenge, at Stage 2 - 600 thousand tenge, total - 725 thousand tenge.

очд
Ф:чо
Ф

zб

ý|ъ
, ýIw
ý яltJ
ý,lo

90

,/
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Для
отчётов

Iдо
.1.АzАQSТДN

8. oTHER GENERAL AND ADMINlSTRATlvE EXPENSES

professional services
Depreciation and amortization
Software support
Taxes, fees and оthеr compulsory payments
communication services and information seгvices
Operating expenses
Processing services
Expenses fоr operating [ease
Representation expenses
Repairs and maintenance
Trave[[ing expenses
Security
Membership fees
Transportation expenses
lпsчrапсе expenses
сочriеr services
Office suppIies
Writing off рrореrtу, рlапt and equipment
Advertisement and marketing
Other
Total оthеr general and administrative expenses

Reporting period
Adjustment to рriоr period
Changes in dеfеrrеd taxes resulting frоm оссчrrепсе and recovery of
tеmроrаry differences
Total income tax (ехрепsе)/есопоmу

profit Ьеfоrе income tax
lпсоmе tax calculated iп ассоrdапсе with prevailing income tax rаtе
Non-taxab[e income from transactions with securities
Оthеr non-deductible expenses
Total income tax (ехрепsе)/есопоmу
Effective income tax rаtе

z024

219,694
145,016
1 10,659
108,434
72,474
32,834
з1,525
з0,1 84
2з,985
70,662
20,35"|
1 8,569
17,z70
14,874
,lз,615

6,339
5,824
2,106
1,749

94,876

2оzз

21,385
10z,914 ,

46,639
67,120-
61,779
з0,051.
27,767,
11,419,
18,923,
8,507

1 6,628
8,5z7

22,53z
12,198
17,458
7,905
5,815
1,430
1,99з

80,007
991 040 ____эýэр21-_

9. lNcoME тАх (EXPENSE)/EсoNoMY

The Bank makes tax calcu[ations for the сurrепt period based оп data of tax accounting rесоrds kept in
accordance with the requirements of the tax [aws of the Repub[ic of Kazakhstan. lпсоmе tax expenses
fоr the years ended 31 DесеmЬеr 2024 and 2023 аrе shown below.

2024

(7,75з,000)

2о23

12,644

(4,293) 3 296
(7, 757,293| _____llf19_

The income tax rate in the Republic of Kazakhstan was set at 20% during 2024 and 2023. lncome оп
government securities and сеrtаiп оthеr securities is not subject to income tax.

Due to the fact that сеrtаiп expenses аrе not accounted fоr tax рurроsеs, as we[[ as thеrе is поп-tахаЬ[е
income, the Bank has сеrtаiп реrmапепt tax differences.

Ca[cutation of the effective income tax rаtе fоr the уеаrs ended 3'l DесеmЬеr 2074 and 202З:

2024 202з

4з,464,541
(8,692,908)

1 ,105 ,717
(1 70,102)

25,201,765
(5,040,з5з)

5,684,608,
(628,315)

_р,]l],29}L
17.8%

____-]lJlg.
-о.1%
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!ДDо
цяzАQSТДN

fulя
отчётов

thоusапds kozokhstoni

Deferred tax assets

The tеmроrаry differences arising between the va[ue of assets and liabitities rероrtеd in the financial
statements апd the amounts used to calcu[ate the tax base give rise to dеfеrrеd tax assets as of З1
DесеmЬеr 2024 and tiabilities as of 31 DесеmЬеr 2023.

The change in the amount of temporary differences fоr the уеаrs ended 31 December 2024 and 2023 сап
Ье presented as fo[[ows:

2024 ваlапсе as of
1 Jапчаrу

2о24

Reported iп
profit оr

loss

7,88з
(1z,176)

Balance as of
31 DесеmЬеr

2024

(20,z76|
64,751

(28,1 59)

76,4z7

Рrореrtу, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
right-of-use assets
0ther liabitities

zo23

Рrореrtу, p[ant and equipment, intangib[e assets and
right-of-use assets
other tiabitities

10. сASH AND сASH EQUIVALENTS

cash оп hand
Nostro accounts with RK NB
Nostro accounts with оthеr banks
- having credit rаtiпg Д- to Д+
- hачiпg credit roting ВВ- to ВВ+
- поt rаtеd
Total Nostro accounts with оthеr banks
Cash equivalents
Теrm deposits with RK NB
Теrm deposits with other banks
Provision fоr expected credit losses
Total cash and cash equivalents

48 268

ваlапсе as of
'l January

20zз

(12,892)

(4,29з)

Reported in
profit оr

loss

(15,267)
,l8,563

_______эрб

43 975

Balance as
of

31 DесеmЬеr
2о23

(28,1 59)
76,427

______l!;!8
57 864

44 972

31 DесеmЬеr
20z4

474,805
2,005,555

8 ,195 ,891
232,146

31 DесеmЬег
2023

1 ,,l83,458
94з,194

54 720

8,007,882
132,4зз
46,829

8,48zL7rL 8 187 144

31 6,664,38з
9,010,78,1

51 8,928,045

(,l4,85з) (ц11)
529 876 309 __э}э}12,112_

The credit ratings аrе presented in ассоrdапсе with the standards of the rating agency Standard & Poor's
оr similar standards of other international rating agencies. Cash and cash equiva[ents аrе not past due.

Requirements for minimum rеsеrчеs

Дs of 31 DесеmЬеr 2024 and 202З, in ассоrdапсе with the NBK resolution, minimum rеsеrче requirements
аrе calculated as the ачеrаgе of the amounts of сеrtаiп shares of various grоuрs of the Bank's tiabitities
fоr twenty-eight саlепdаr days. Banks аrе required to соmр[у with these requirements Ьу maintaining
ачеrаgе rеsеryе assets (in the fоrm of cash оп hand in the nationa[ сurrепсу and ba[ances оп the bank's
соrrеsропdепt accounts with the National Bank in the nationa[ сurrепсу) in ап amount equal to оr
exceeding the average minimum rеquirеmепts. As of 31 December 2024 and 202З. The amount of the
minimum rеsеrче is 2,393,207 thousand tenge and 1,587,259 thousand tenge, respectively
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отчётов

!BDo
QАzаq57дл

Для

Concentration of cash and cash equivalents

As of 31 DесеmЬеr 2024, the Bank has опе bank (31 DесеmЬеr 2023: З banks), which accounts for mоrе
than10% of the Bank's equity. The tota[ amount of ba[ances as of 31 DесеmЬеr 2024 and 202З is
520,9ЗЗ,600 thousand tenge and 330,078,507 thousand tenge, respective[y.

11. AccoUNTS AND DEPoS|TS WITH BANKS

31 DесеmЬеr
2024

31 DесеmЬеr
2023

1 85,000
(90)

185,000
(qZ)

,l84 913 184,9,10

As of 31 DесеmЬеr 2024 апd 2023, accordingly, the Bank had no deposits that wou[d exceed 10% of the
Bank's equity.

12. LoANS GRANTED то сUSTOMERS

cash restricted in use
Provision for expected credit losses
Total accounts and deposits with banks

Loans granted to соrроrаtе customers
- Loons grопtеd to lorge-scale businesses
- Loons grапtеd to small апd medium-sized businesses
Total loans granted to соrроrаtе customers
Provision fоr impairment
Total loans granted to соrроrаtе customers, subject to provision
fоr impairment
Loans granted to retail customers
- Сопsumеr credits
Total loans granted to retail customers
Рrочisiоп fоr impairment
Total ]оапs granted to retail customers, subject to provision fоr
impairment
Total loans granted to customers less provision

31 DесеmЬеr
zo24

31 DесеmЬеr
2о2з

6,978,987
з1,619,646

15,983,905
49,754,558
65,738,46з 38, 598,63з

(244,447) (285,658)

65,494,о16 38 з12 975

12,516,588 9 807 648
1 2,5 1 6,588 9 807 648

(60,з18) (5,506)

1z,456,z7o 9, 80z,142
77 950 286 ___цllэlJ]_

\/
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вDо
Для

отчётов

(а) Quality of loans granted to customers

The table below provides information on quality of loans granted to customers as of З1 DесеmЬеr 2024:

Loans granted to соrроrаtе customers
- uпdче
- past due less thоп 90 days
- past due mоrе than 90 days

Total ]oans granted to соrроrаtе
customers
Loans granted to retaiI customers
- чпdче
- past due less fhоп 90 days
- past due mоrе thon 90 days

Total loans granted to retai[ счstоmеrs

Loans granted to соrроrаtе customers
- uпdче
- past due less thоп 90 doys
- past due mоrе thап 90 days

Total loans granted to согроrаtе
customers
Loans granted to retaiI customers
- чпdче
- past due /ess thcn 90 days
- past due mоrе thап 90 days

Total loans granted to retail customers

___ээ_Jээ,4!з (z44,447) 65,494,016

Loans before
provision fоr
impairment

рrочisiоп
fоr

impairment

Loans less
provision

for
imраirmепt

64,746,582
295,849

Loss frоm
impairment to

total loans
before provision
for impairment

0,01%
1,41%

34 38%

0,з7%

64,750,180
зф,087
688 196

12,34з,1 33
97,592

(3,598)
(4,2з8)

(236,61 1 ) 451 585

(14,346)
(111)

(45,861)

12,328,787
97,481
30,002

0,12%

0,11%

60,45%75 863

_____lл_l_qJ!8 (60, з 1 8) 1z,456,27о

The table be[ow provides information оп quality of loans granted to customers as of 3't DесеmЬеr 202З:

0,48О/о

Loans Ьеfоrе
provision fоr
impairment

37,843,886
146,523

9,765,968
10,970
J0 710

provision
fоr

imраirmепt

Loans less
provision

for
imраirmепt

Loss from
impairment to

total loans
Ьеfоrе

provision fоr
impairment

0,03%
20,13%

(1 1 ,801)
(29,490)

(244,з67)

37,832,085
117,033.
363,857 40 18%608

____]!Jlý,6it_ _J,qJ_цJZ5 0 74оА

(5,180)
(4)

(322)

9,760,788
10,966
JO,J88

0,05%
0,04%
1,05%

__э,8ц,ý!8 __э,892,1ц_

The amount of the provision fоr impairment in 2024 includes the сrеаtiоп of provisions fоr loans assessed
оп ап individual basis in the amount of 286,358 thousand tenge (З1 DесеmЬеr 2023:.276,124 thousand
tenge), provision fоr collective impairment in the аmочпt of 18,407 thousand tenge (31 DесеmЬеr 2023:
1 5,040 thousand tenge).

дs of З1 DесеmЬеr 2О24, as part of the [оап portfolio, [oans issued to соrроrаtе and retaiI customers,
the terms of which have Ьееп changed and which would otheмise Ье очеrduе оr impaired, amount to
496,880 thousand tenge (З1 December 2023: 8З5,382 thousand tenge).

(Ь) Estimates of expected credit losses

Fоr issued loans, the calcu[ation of expected credit losses takes into account the possible estimated
effect of changes in macroeconomic parameters on forecast cash flows, migration of co[lective loans and
со[[аtеrа[ сочеrаgе.

When measuring the leve[ of credit losses, the Вапk uses sound foмard-looking information, which is
based оп assumptions about the future movement of various economic factors and how these factors wi[[
affect each оthеr.

30
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thousonds of Kozakhstoni tenge)

The key inputs used to estimate expected credit losses include the following:

. Probabitity of defau[t (PD) is а key input in measuring the [eve[ of credit [osses. The probabitity of
defautt is ап estimate очеr а given time horizon the ca[culation of which inc[udes historica[ data,
assumptions апd expectations of future conditions.

The probabitity of defautt оп individual [oans of соrроrаtе, sma[[ and medium-sized businesses is assessed
using an iпtеrпа[ rаtiпg mode[ based оп the quantitative and qualitative characteristics of а Ьоrrоwеr.
The probabitity of default оп loans granted that аrе measured оп а co[lective basis is ca[cu[ated оп the
basis of historica[ data Ьу apptying the migration matrices.

. Loss given default (LGD) is ап estimate of the loss that will arise in case of defau[t. lt is based on

а difference between the cash ftows dче чпdеr the contract and those that а [епdеr wou[d expect
to receive taking into account the cash flows frоm the со[lаtеrа[.

The LGD for loans granted that аrе measured on а co[lective basis is calculated оп the basis of ап

assessment of the recoverabi[ity of tiabitities in the event of disposaI of а collateraI using discount periods
corresponding to the tеrms of disposal of со[lаtеrа[.

. The аmочпt of а credit exposure at risk of defau[t (EAD) is ап estimate of risk at а future date of
defautt taking into account expected changes in risk after the rероrtiпg date, including rерауmепts

of principat and interest, as we[[ as expected drawdowns of approved credit funds. The Bank's

аррrоасh to modelting this indicator takes into account the expected changes iп the outstanding

amount during the maturity period that аrе permitted Ьу the сurrепt contractua[ terms such as

amortization profi[es, рrерауmепts оr очеrрауmепts, changes in the use of чпdrаwп amounts оп

credit tiabitities, and mеаsurеs taken to mitigate risks Ьеfоrе the default. То assess credit
ехроsчrеs at risk of default, the Bank uses models that reflect the characteгistics of the respective
portfo[ioS.

The ECL provisions for loans granted in the financial statements have Ьееп determined based оп the
prevai[ing economic and po[itical conditions. The Bank cannot predict what changes iп conditions wi[[

оссur in the Repubtic of Kazakhstan and what effect these changes wi[[ have оп the adequacy of
provisions fоr ECLs of financial assets in future periods.

(с) Analysis of collateral апd оthеr credit епhапсеmепts

(i) Lоопs grопtеd to соrроrоtе сustоmеrs

The [oans granted to соrроrаtе customers аrе subject to individuaI measurement and impairment testing.
The очеrаt[ creditworthiness of а соrроrаtе customer is usually the most important indicator of the
quatity of the [оап granted to it. However, the collatera[ means additional guarantees, and the Bank

usually asks соrроrаtе Ьоrrоwеrs to provide the same.
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The tables be(ow provide information on со[[аtеrа[ and оthеr credit enhancements fоr [оапs to соrроrаtе
customers Ьу type of со[[аtеrа[:

31 DесеmЬеr 2024

Саrrуiпg
amount of

loans granted
to customers

Fair value of
collateral

measured at
the rероrtiпg

date

Fair value of
collateraI

measured at а date
of loan issuance

Not measured
fair чаlче of
colIateral

Lоапs йth по indiйdual indicators of imраirmепt
Corporate guarantees (provided Ьу related
parties having credit rating of А- оr higher)
other guarantees (provided Ьу companies
having credit rating of А оr higher)

lmmovab[e рrореrtу
Cash апd deposits
0thеr со[lаtеrаl

36,81 7, з99
,l9,010,2зз

z,144,5зб
1 9,01 0,233
7,1ц,536

з6,8,1 7, з99

19,0,10,23з

6,36з,645 6,36з,645
Lоапs йth individual iпdiсоtогs of
imраirmепt
Соrроrаtе gчаrапtее (provided Ьу related
party having credit rating of А, to А+)

lmmovab[e рrореrtу
0ther co[[ateraI

3'| DесеmЬеr 2023

Loans with individual indicators of
imроirmепt
Соrроrаtе guаrапtее (provided Ьу related
раrtу having credit rating of А- to А+)

lmmovab[e property
оthеr co[[ateraI

64,з35,8,|3 21 ,154,769

,l83,421

6,363,645 55,827,632

974,78z
18з,4z1
974,782

1 .1 58,203 18з,421

Total loans grапtеd to соrроrаtе customers 65,494,о16 21,з38,190

974,78z
7,зз8,427 55,827,6з2

Саrгуiпg
amount of

loans granted
to customers

Fаir value of
collateral

measured at
the reporting

date

Fаir value of
collateral

measured at а date
of loan issuance

Not measured
fair value of
collateral

Loons йth по indiйdual indicators о| imроirmепt
Соrроrаtе guarantees (provided Ьу retated
раrtiеs having credit rating of А- оr higher)
Other guarantees (provided Ьу companies
having credit rating of А or higher)

lmmочаЬ[е рrореrtу
Cash апd deposits
оthеr соt[аtеrа[

28,91 9,996 28,919,996

з,76з,4з4
20,00з

4,570,648

з,76з,4з4
20,00з

4,570,648

з7,274,о81 3,78з,4з7 4,570.648 z8,919,996

585,91 0

1,038,894 585,9 1 0 45z,984
Total loans granted to соrроrаtе customers 38,31 2,975 4,з69,з47 5,023,6з2 28,919,996

The tables аьоче exc[ude the cost of overcollateralization

Because the ability to rесочеr undue апd non-impaired loans granted to соrроrаtе customers depends
in а grеаtеr degree оп the creditworthiness of а Ьоrrоwеr than оп the ча[че of co[[atera[, the Bank does
not always estimate the value of collateral at each reporting date.

Fоr most loans, the fair value of the со[[аtеrа[ was measured at the reporting date. lnformation about
the ча[uе of collateral is presented depending оп the date оп which it was measured, if such а
mеаsurеmепt is made.

Fоr loans with severaI types of соltаtеrа[, iпfоrmаtiоп is disclosed Ьу the type of co[tateraI that is the
most significant fог соllаtеrа[ measurement.

585,9,10

45z,984 452,984

отчётов
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(ii) Loons grопtеd to retoil customers

The [оапs granted to retaiI customers аrе mainly collaterized with residential рrореrtiеs. According to
the Bank's po[icy, the ratio between the [оап amount and the value of the collatera[ оп the date of loan
issuance should Ье timited to 60%.

The tables be[ow provide information оп the col[ateral of [оапs granted to retaiI customers:

Fаir чаlче of
collateral - for

coIlateral
measured at
the reporting

date
31 DесеmЬеr 2о24
Undue
Overdue
Total loans granted to retail счstоmеrs

31 December 2о23
Undue
Overdue
Total loans granted to retail customers

Finances
Loans granted to retail customers
lmmovable рrореrtу
Trade
provision of individuat services
construction
Other professional, scientific and technical activities
Тrапsроrt
Lease апd hiring
Specialized construction works
Warehousing and auxiliary transportation activities
Fооd stuff production
Advertising activities
Рriпtiпg and reproducing recorded materiats
Other
Total lоапs granted to соrроrаtе customers

12,328,787
1z7,48з

12,зz8,787
127,483

1z 456 27о 12,456,27о

9,760,788 9,760,788
41 354 41 354

9,8oz,142 ___-э,891,1ц-

The tables аЬоче exclude the cost of очеrсоllаtеrаlizаtiоп.

(d) дпаlуsis of lоап portfolio Ьу Ьrапсhеs of есопоmу and geographical аrеаs

The loans wеrе granted mainty to customers conducting activities in the Republic of kazakhstan in the
fol[owing sectors of the есопоmу:

31 December
2о24

31 DесеmЬеr
2о2з

5з,360,640
12,456,z70
3,924,632
1,744,600

61з,9zz
498,6,|8
42з,564
27z,640
z49,852
1 з5,701
1 з4,552
1з0,744
54,280

3 950 771

77, 950,286 ___зэ,lЕ,ц]_

Сопсепtrаtiоп of loans granted to customers

дs of 31 December 2024, the Bank has three Ьоrrоwеrs whose lоап Ьа[апсеS amount mоrе than'l0% of

the capitat (З.t DесеmЬеr 202з: three Ьоrrоwеrs). The totat amount of [оап ba[ances of the specified

Ьоrrоwеrs as of З1 December ZO24 is 52,80,|,304 thousand tenge (31 Dесеmьеr 2023: 28,919,996

thousand tenge).

29,253,53 5

9,802,142
8з3,79z

1,942,538
795,004
6,15,015

407,58z
305,640
z57,891
,l49,968

283,862
1 4з,8з4
175,8z7

1,171
3,147,316

зз

Саrrуiпg
аmочпt of

loans granted
to customers
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13. FlNANclAL ASSETS Ат AMoRTIZED coST

Hetd Ьу the Вапk
- Treasury bi|Is of the Иinistry of Fiпапсе of the Republic of
kazakhstan
- Notes of the NаtiопаI Вапk of the Republic of Kazakhstan
Рrочisiоп for expected credit losses
Total financial assets at amortized cost

ýýю
QДZДQSТДN

Для
отчётов

31 DесеmЬеr
2о24

З1 December
zоzз

5з,l2з,4z8 88 1о7 686

дs of 31 DесеmЬеr 2024, the entire amount of investments held to maturity is represented Ьу Treasury
bitts of the Ministry of Fiпапсе of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan. As of 31 DесеmЬеr 2023, the епtirе amount
of investments hetd to maturity is rерrеsепtеd Ьу Treasury bitts of the Ministry of Fiпапсе of the Republic
of Kazakhstan and notes of the Nationat Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan in tenge, and having а сrеdit
rating of "ВВВ-".

lп ассоrdапсе with the Bank's business model, management has the intention and abitity to hold these
securities untiI maturity. officiatty published price quotes fоr simi[ar debt securities with identical tеrms

аrе avai[ab[e оп the [оса[ stock exchange.

Fоr treasury transactions, the Bank calcu[ates expected credit losses оп а financia[ asset based not оп[У

оп the счrrепt assessments of the credit quatity of а counterparty/issuer at the reporting date, but also

taking into account the possible deterioration of the financial condition due to the influence of
чпfачъчrаьtе mасrоесопоmiс factors in the operating environment of а соuпtеrраrtу (issuer) in the
future. lп раrtiсч[аr, the [eve[ of provisions for treasury transactions is affected Ьу the rating outlook
(positive, stable, negative) assigned Ьу the internationat rating agencies, which affects the ProbabititY
of defautt (PD).

The probabitity of defautt оп treasury transactions is determined according to the data of Default Study
frоm the iпtеrпаtiопаt rating agencies (S&P, Fitch, Moody's), which pubtish tаЬulаr data with the values
of defautt probabitities. Defautt probabilities аrе kept up to date and updated frоm time to time as

defau[t statistics аrе updated.

The tevet of loss given defautt (LGD) for treasury transactions is determined according to the data of the
Defautt Study frоm the international rating agencies (S&P, Fitch, Moody's) and depends оп the type of
debt оп а financial asset: sепiоr secured/unsecured, subordinated, sovereign. LGD сап also Ье adjusted
if the asset is secured, as welI as if thеrе аrе indicators of impairment of а financiaI asset (Stage 2 or
Stage З).

14. NoN-сURRENT ASSETS HELD FoR SALE

дs of З,! DесеmЬеr 2024, the саrryiпg amount of поп-сurrепt assets hetd fоr sale amounted to 155,691

thousand tenge (З1 December 2023: 155,691 thousand tenge). According to the va[uation Ьу the
independent аррrаisеr LLP "GaMa Grоuр" (Certificate No. 00170 dated 01.01.2020, BlN 160840018855),
the market ча[че of поп-сurrепt assets held for sale as of the end of 2024 amounted to З42,265 thousand
tenge (as of the епd of 2023: 340,605 thousand tenge). The поп-счrrепt assets held fоr sa[e rерrеsепt
assets that the Вапk acquired as rерауmепt for outstanding [oans issued to customers. The sale of these
properties was delayed due to legal proceedings related to the forced eviction of the previous owners,
which wеrе оп[у finalized in Мау 2024. The Bank has deve[oped а disposal р[ап, чпdеr which the sa[e of
these assets is expected to Ье completed within the next 12 months. The поп-сurrепt assets held fоr sa[e

wеrе recognized at their purchase price, as determined during the auction рrосеss.

17,569,375
70,544,158

(5,847)

з4

53,142,463_

(1 9,035)
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15. oTHER ASSETS

Spot transaction claims
Accrued pena[ties and fines
Settlement of payments оп card accounts
оthеr assets
Provision for expected credit losses
Total оthеr financial assets
Other prepayments
Prepaid lease
Security deposit
Receivab[es f rоm employees
Deferred expenses
Other taxes prepaid in budget
Fее for software
other assets
Provision for expected credit losses
Total оthеr non-financial assets
Total other assets

16. сURRENTAccoUNTS AND DEPoSITS оF сUSToMERS

Счrrепt accounts and deposits оп demand
- Retoil customers
- Соrроrаtе сustоmеrs
Total current accounts апd deposits оп demand

Теrm deposits
- Retoil customers
- Соrроrоtе customers

Total tеrm deposits
Total счrrепt accounts and deposits of customers

Loan from EBRD

Total loans frоm international financial organizations

23 513 451 ____19J_ц,щ_1_

5,139,724
5з7,732,511

6,417,251
402,703 ,003

31 December
zo24

687,625
445,1 38
z28,877

9 461
(196,947l.

31 DесеmЬеr
2оzз

з77,15z
129,35z
78,626
5,290
(1 59)

169 154 540 261
57,1 81

33,634
31,633
з0, з59
6,z91
1,901

92,409
31,505
26,6з7

8,1 93

6, з01
6,1 36
2,з78

1486

(1,200) (600)

165,947 194 08з
7з4,з441,зз5,101

З1 December
zo24

31 December
2023

2,127,277
8

3,549,012
19,964,439 ,904

Blocked amounts

Asof 31 December2024,thedepositsof theBank'scustomersintheamountof 147,628thousandtenge
(31 DесеmЬеr 2023: 115,5ZZ thousand tenge) serye as collateral for tiabilities оп [oans granted to
customers апd off-balance credit instrument provided Ьу the Bank.

Concentration of счrrепt accounts and deposits of customers

Дs of З,l December 2024, the Вапk has four customers (3'| December 2023: three), whose accounts and
deposits exceed 10% of equity. The total Ьа[апсе as of 3'| December 2024 amounted to 520,180,778
thousand tenge (3'| DесеmЬеr 2023: 386,915,568 thousand tenge).

17. LoANS FRoM INTERNATIoNAL FlNANclAL oRGANlzATloNS

__эц,871,2зэ_
__l!!Jщ,qý_q_

31 DесеmЬеr
zoz4

14,058,073

__192Jю,z5l_

31 DесеmЬеr
2оzз

7,023,267

35

14,058,07з 7,о2з,267

21,1z4

___1?9,0]ll]l_
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lп 2020, the Bank entered into two [oan agreements with the Еurореап Вапk for Reconstruction and
Development (EBRD):

- Loan Agreement No. 50791 dated ,|З FеЬruаry 2020, to support smatl and medium-sized businesses in
tenge, equivalent to USD 'l0,000,000, with the first trапсhе rерауmепt due Ьу 29 SерtеmЬеr 2025, and
the second trапсhе Ьу 29 Арrit 2027.

- Loan Аgrееmепt No. 50792 dated 13 FеЬruаry 2020, fоr the development of the "Women in Business"
project in tenge, equivalent to USD 5,000,000, with the first trапсhе rерауmепt due Ьу 29 SерtеmЬеr
2025, and the second trапсhе Ьу 29 Арrit 2027.

Uпdеr these аgrееmепts, the first tranche was received iп 2020, and the second tranche was received in
2022.

lп 2021, the Bank entered into опе [оап agreement with the EBRD:

- Loan Аgrееmепt No. 528't7 dated 10 DесеmЬеr 202'1, under the Grееп Есопоmу Financing Facitity
(GЕFF) рrоgrаm in tenge, equiva[ent to USD 5,000,000, with rерауmепt due Ьу 24 June 2027.

The епtirе amount was received in tenge during 2022.

lп 2024, the Вапk entered into three [оап agreements with the EBRD:

- Loan Аgrееmепt No. 54З06 dated 12 DесеmЬеr 2023, чпdеr the "Youth in Business" рrоgrаm in tenge,
equivalent to USD 8,000,000, with the first trапсhе rерауmепt due Ьу 20 Маrсh 2028.
- Loan Аgrееmепt No. 54986 dated 17 Арri[ 2024, to support sma[[ and medium-sized businesses iп tenge,
equivalent to USD 12,000,000, with the first trапсhе rерауmепt due Ьу 18 Juty 2028.
- Lоап Аgrееmепt No. 55639 dated 21 ОсtоЬеr 2024, uпdеr the Grееп Есопоmу Financing Facitity (GЕFF)

рrоgrаm iп tenge, equiva[ent to USD 20,000,000, with the first trапсhе rерауmепt due Ьу 26 NочеmЬеr
zoz7.

The first trапсhеs under all three agreements wеrе rесеiчеd in 2024.

lnterest оп the loans is calcu[ated at а f[oating rate and paid оп а qчаrtеr[у basis in ассоrdапсе with the
terms of the agreements. As of the end of the reporting period, the interest rates for Loan Agreements
dated 1 Juty 2020: 10.95%; dated 1 FеЬruаry 2072: 11,35%; dated 24 June 2022: 11.45%; dated 20 Маrсh
2024: 16,75%; dated 18 Juty 2074: 12.08%; dated 26 NочеmЬеr 2024: 13.64%;

The Bank is required to соmр[у with сеrtаiп financiaI obligations uпdеr the tеrms of the above-mentioned
[оап аgrееmепts. These obligations include agreed-upon ratios used for financia[ реrfоrmапсе indicators.
As of 3'| DесеmЬеr 2024, and 31 DесеmЬеr 2023, the Bank had not violated апу of these obligations.

Movements of liabilities due to financing activities

The tab[e be[ow shows the changes in tiabitities as а resu[t of financia[ activities, inc[uding both changes
due to cash flows and changes not re[ated to cash f[ows. Liabi[ities due to financing activities аrе those
tiabitities the cash flows of which have Ьееп оr wi[[ Ье c[assified as cash f[ows from financing activities
in the statement of cash flows.

2024 zо2з

8,2з0,594
(1 ,1 85,988)

(21,з39)

___J,оц,267_

* Оthег changes include iпtеrеst expenses and paid interest

36

Ва[апсе at the beginning of the уеаr
DisposaI
Receipt
Оthеr changes
Balance at the end of the уеаr

7,02з,267
(2,597,946|

9,640,500
(7,748)

l

14,058,073
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18. oTHER L|ABIL|T|ES

Liabitities оп sport transactions
Liabitities оп lease
Payab[es from suppliers
Banking transactions рауаЬ[е
other tiabitities
Total other financial tiabitities

Settlement of taxes and оthеr compu[sory payments in budget
other transit account5
Payab[es to emp[oyees
provision fоr leaves
other tiabitities
Total оthеr non-financial liabilities
Total other liabilities

Net earnings for the уеаr
Quantity of issued оrdiпаry shаrеs
Basic and diluted earnings реr shаrе, tenge

31 DесеmЬеr
zo24

З,l December
zo23

682,643
1 52,,l50
,1 зз, ,106

14,460
4,51 з

244,500
329,000
70,649
,1,1,920

з075

_______}!!,811_ 661,з76

850,1 1 5 618 7об

___J_,?ý9,9gз_

19. SHARE сAPITAL

(а) Issued and additional paid-up capital

The authorized, issued and outstanding shаrе capita[ of the Bank consists of '! ,002,872 ordinary shares
(202з:1,ooz,87zordinaryshares).Aparva[ueof a[[sharesamountsto10,000tenge.

Hotders of ordinary shares аrе entitled to rесеiче dividends as they аrе declared, as well as they have
the right to опе vote реr share at аппuаl and gепеrаl meetings of shareho[ders of the Bank.

(Ь) Earnings реr shаrе

409,056
92,637
з9,44z
68,8з4
8,7з7

3'l DесеmЬеr
z024

31 DесеmЬеr
202з

25,217,705
1,00z,87z

з5,707,248
1,007,872

______11,691J9__ 25,145,49

The Bank's ordinary shares аrе not traded iп pubtic market, however, the Bank has independent[y chosen

to disc[ose information оп the net earnings реr share ca[culated in ассоrdапсе with the геquirеmепts of
lA5 33 Еаrпiпgs реr Shore.

(с) provision for revaluation of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income that аrе available for sale

provision fоr revaluation of financiat assets avaitable for sale includes accumulated net change in fair
value untiI derecognition.

(d) Dividend

The Bank's abitity to dес[аrе апd рау dividends is determined iп ассоrdапсе with the requirements of
the legistation of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

Dividend оп ordinary shares is recognized as а distribution of retained earnings fоr the period fоr which
it is accrued. дt the time of issue of the financial statements for 2024, по dividend has Ьееп declared
yet (2023: по dividend has Ьееп declared).

з7

477,791
719,z53
102,473
48,494
2,104

_______]_,щ_qд7
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2о. R|SK MANAGEMENT

Risk management under[ies banking activities and is ап essential e[ement of the operating activities of
the Bank. Market risk, credit risk and tiquidity risk аrе the main risks that the Bank faces in the сочrsе
of its activities.

(а) Risk management policies and procedures

The Bank's risk management policy is aimed at identifying, analysing and managing the risks to which the
Bank is exposed, at setting risk limits and related сопtrоls, as we[l as at continuously assessing the [еvе[
of risks and their сопfоrmапсе to the established limits. Risk management policies and рrосеdurеs аrе
reviewed оп а rеgчlаr basis to reflect changes in the mаrkеt епчirопmепt, banking products and sеrчiсеs
offered, and emerging best practices.

The Воаrd of Directors of the Bank is responsible fоr the рrореr functioning of the risk mапаgеmепt
сопtrо[ system, fоr managing key risks and approving risk management policies and рrосеdurеs, as we[[

as for approving mаjоr transactions.

The Management Board of the Bank is responsible for monitoring and imp[ementing risk mitigation
mеаsчrеs, as wel[ as ensuring that the Bank conducts activities within established risk limits. The
Management Board of the Bank is responsible fоr overall risk management and сопtrо[ of compliance
with the requirements of the сurrепt [egislation, as well as overseeing the application of general
principles and methods for identifying, assessing, managing and reporting both financia[ and поп-

financiaI risks.

Credit and market risks and tiquidity risk аrе managed and controlted Ьу the Credit Committee and the
Committee for Assets and Liabitities Management (CALM) both at the [ечеl of the portfolio as а whole
and at the [eve[ of individual transactions.

Both ехtеrпа[ and internal risk factors аrе identified and managed within the organization. Раrtiсu[аr
attention is paid to identifying the entire tist of risk factors and determining the level of sufficiency of
current risk minimization procedures.

ln addition to the standard analysis of credit and mаrkеt risks, the Management Board of the Bank
monitors financia[ and non-financial risks Ьу holding rеgu[аr meetings with operating units iп оrdеr to
obtain ап ехреrt opinion оп individual management Boards.

(Ь) Market risk

Market risk is the risk of changes in the fair value оr future cash flows of а financial instrument due to
changes in market prices. Market risk consists of foreign exchange risk, interest rаtе risk, as we[[ as оthеr

рriсе risks. Market risk arises frоm open positions in interest, счrrепсу and equity financial instruments
that аrе affected Ьу gепеrаl and specific market movements and changes in the [ече[ of market рriсе
voIatiIity.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control that ехроsurе to market risk does
поt go beyond acceptabte раrаmеtеrs, whi[e ensuring the optimization of the rеtчrп received fоr the
risk taken. The CALfi headed Ьу the Chairman is responsib[e fоr managing market and liquidity risks. The
СдL/й аррrочеs mаrkеt and tiquidity risk limits based оп recommendations frоm the Risk Мапаgеmепt
Division.

The Bank manages market risk Ьу setting limits оп the ореп position in relation to the amount of the
portfotio for individual financial instruments, the timing of changes in interest rates, сurrепсу position,
[oss limits and rеgu[аr monitoring of their compliance with the results to Ье reviewed and approved Ьу
the Management Воаrd.

Jз8

|).
1-i

Для
отчётов
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(i) lnterest rаtе risk

lnterest rate risk is the risk that the fair vatue оr future cash flows of а financial instrument wit( change due to changes in market interest rates. Тhе Вапk i5
exposed to the effects of ftuctuations iп the prevailing market interest rates оп jts financial position апd cash flows. such ftuctuations mау iпсrеаsе the level
of interest margjn, but may also reduce it, оr, jn the event of ап unexpected сhапgе in intereýt rates, lead to losses.

lпtеrеýt rate risk is primarily managed Ьу mопitоriпg changes in interest rates.

Analysiý of timing to review iпtеrеst rates
lnterest rate risk is primarily managed Ьу monitoring changes jп interest rates. Brief information regarding the timing to rейеw the interest rates fоr mаiоr
interest-bearing financiat instruments as of З1 December 2024 сап Ье presented as follows:

Les5 than 1 1-3 months З-12 months '|-5 уеав 
'aore 

than 5 lnterбt-freб Total
month уеаБ

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts and deposits with banks
Loans granted to customers
FinanciaI assets at amortized cost
Total assets
LlABlLlTlEs
Accounts and deposits of banks
Счrrепt accounts and deposits of customers
Loans frоm internationaI financiaI institutions
Total liabilities
Total net position

518,9,14,668

9, з98,295

523,936,о9з ___J,эээ,з29 5з 213 56з 9,з98,295 11 146 554 661

(,l38,468)

1,626,008
3,395,417

z,666,226
4,970,17з

з9,850,1 02
1 з,з63,461

24,409,655
з1 ,з94,з77

55,804,оз2

10,961 ,641
,t84,91з

529,876,309
,l84,913

77,950,286
5з,,lz3,428

1з4 9зб

(52,1,120,26з)
(5,079,708)

(9,508,559)
(2,404,з79)

(,1з,936,7з6)
(6,573,986)

(506, з 1 6)
(2,|,68,1,660)

(506,316)
(566, з85,686)

оlщqqz3)
(526.1 99,971| (11,912,9з8) (20, 51o,7zz| 1 з8,468 (22,187,976) (580,950,075)

e,z63,878, (4,276,5з9| з2,7о2)841 55,665,564 9,398,295 (11,о41 ,4zz| 80,184,861

ýýЕ
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Впеf jnformation regarding the timing to reviёw the interest rates for maior interest-bearing financial instruments as of З'| December 202З сап Ье presented
as fo[[ows:

Less than 1

month
1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 уеаrs Моrе thап 5

уеаrs

6,634,1 1з

lnterest-free

10,31z,761
,184,910

TotaI

335,979,749
184,910

48,115,117

AsSETs
Cash апd cash equiva[ents
Accounts апd deposits with banks
Loans granted to customers
Financial assets at аmогtizеd cost
Total assets

LlABlLlTlES
Accounts and deposits of banks
Счrrепt accounts and deposits of customers
Loans frоm iпtеrпаtiопа[ financiat institutions
Total liabilities
Total пеt position

__щgдщqz_ 9,4z

з25,666,988

615,004
7z,684,315

2,779,640
7,150,279

22,447,744
з,457 ,9z5 88 107 686

9,9,! 9 25,900,669 20,958,783 6,634,1 1 3 1о,497,671 472,з87,462

16,14з,616
4,815,167

(з8z,442,312|
(89,999)

(1 1,0з4,379)
(4,61 8, 783 )

(16,888,761 ) {74,99z)

(з48,438)
(9,644,991)

(348,438)

(420,0з5,435)

(z, з 14,485) (7,0zз ,267|
(з82,532,з,t 1) (15, 65з,1 62) Фрэ}lýL 992) (9,99з,429) (427,4о7,14о|

___1э,4зэ,9ээ_ (6,2z3,2ц| 6, 697,42з ___ц,9ээ,lэ1 ____ý,qуJlз 5o4,z4z 44,98о,з22
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Average effective interest rates

The following tabte presents ачеrаgе effective interest rates for interest-bearing assets and [iabi[ities as
of 31 DесеmЬеr 2024 and 202З:

2о24
Average effective
interest rate, О/о

2оzз
Average effective
intereSt rc

Tenge US dollar Tenge US dotlar

lnterest-bearing assets
Cash and cash equiva[ents
Accounts and deposits with banks
Loans granted to customers
FinanciaI assets at amortized cost
lпtеrеst-Ьеаriпg liabi lities
Счrrепt accounts and deposits of banks

- Теrm deposits
Loans frоm internationaI financia[ organizations

11.16
,l 

3. 62

1 0.96
12.88

15.23 3.05

17.74

12.06

6.22

0.50

15.68

14.09

1 8.55
14,64

2.58

6.6

0.50

Analysis of sensitivity to сhапgеs in interest rates

lnterest rаtе risk management based оп interest rate review timing is complemented Ьу sensitivity
monitoring of financia[ assets and tiabitities. The analysis of sensitivity of net income оr loss and equity
of the Bank (less taxes) to changes in interest rates (interest rate rечiеw risk) based оп а simp[ified
scenario of а раrаl[еt shift of yietd curyes Ьу 100 basis points towards increasing оr decreasing interest
rates and renegotiated positions оп interest-bearing assets and tiabitities effective as of З1 December
2024 and 2023 сап Ье presented as fo[[ows:

2024 2о2з
Profit оr loss Equity Profit оr loss Equity

100 basis point paral[el shift toward
decreasing rates
100 basis point раrа[[е[ shift toward
iпсrеаsiпg rates

(52,24z)

52 ?.42

(ii) Сurrепсу risk

Fоrеigп exchange risk is the risk of а change in the fair value оr fчtчrе cash f[ows of а financial instrument
due to changes in the сurrепсу ехсhапgе rates. Despite the fact that the Bank hedges its ехроsurе to
foreign exchange risk, such transactions do not match the definition of а hedging relationship in
ассоrdапсе with the lFRSs.

(1 04,598)

1 04,598

41

The Bank has assets and liabitities denominated in sечеrаl foreign счrrепсiеs.
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The structure of financia[ assets and tiabilities in terms of сurrепсу as of З1 December 2024 сап Ье
rерrеsепtеd as fol[ows:

Тепgе US dollar Ечrо Russian
roub[e

Other Total

ASSETS

Cash апd cash equivalents
Accounts and depos,its with banks

Loans granted to customers
Fiпапсiа[ assetý at amortized cost
other f,inanciaI assets

Total assets

540,975 17,719 1,485

626,886,676 з4,857,235 __эц,2]5 _L]Jlэ- ___l_,1!5 662,304,090

LlABlLlTlES
Accounts and deposits of banks
Current accounts and deposits of
customers
Loans frоm internationaI financia[
organizations
оthеr financiat tiabitities
Total [iabiIities

Net position

LlABlLlTlEs
Accounts апd deposits of banks
Current ассоuпts and deposits of
customers
Loans f rоm internationat financiaI
organizations
other financial, tiabiLities

Total liabilities

Net position

(797,808)

_ý!J]6,э9lL
80,64з

(1 8,062)

]]!дщL ________:_

____Ej!L ___J_,l!_5

253

(29,084)

529,876, з09
1 84,91 з

77,950,786
53,,l2з,428

169 154

(506,31 6)

(566, з85,686)

(1 4,058,07з)
(986,872)

]l!_1,9!_qf!Z)-
80,367, 1 43

зз5,979,749
1 84,910

48,115,117
88, 1 07,686

540,261

(з48,4з8)

(420,035,435)

(7,0zз,267|
(661 ,376)

494,892,794

184,913
77,5з6,04з
53, 

,l23,428

1 ,149,498

з4,42з,зз6_

414,z4з_

19 656

(48,010)

(532, з08,905)

(14,058,073)

(1 88,97з)
(546, 603.961)

(452, з50)

(33,526,4з4)

(5,956)

(532,285)

(91)

_Еt!;]э_
2,64з80,282,71 5

The structure of financial assets and tiabitities in terms of сurrепсу as of 31 DесеmЬеr 2023 сап Ье
rерrеsепtеd aS fo[[oWS:

Tenge US dollar Ечrо Russian
rouble

Other Tota1

205,666 30, 381

TotaI assets 45!Jl!J4! 18,524,121 205,666 ___lgJ!1 ___l;99_ 472,927,723

,l8,031,169

167,057_

325,895

(23,1 59)

(401,409,692)

(7,023,267|
(611,177|

(з23,529)

(,t8, з93,602)

(1,750)

(203,057)

_gq9д!цдL
45,091,051

{18,767,z47) (204,890) _l?9,09rL (428,068,51 6)

24з,126l _____]]_6 _J,297 ___1199_ 44,8 59,207

The impact оп рrе-tах profit and equity based оп the value of financial assets is calculated using

ехсhапgе rаtе volati[ity ana[ysis. As of 31 DесеmЬеr 2024 апd 2023, according to the Bank's management,
а possible exchange rаtе mочеmепt is 15%.

д decrease in the tenge exchange rаtе, as shown below, against the indicated сurrепсiеs as at 31

December 2024 and 2023 woutd have increased (decreased) equity and profit оr loss Ьу the amounts

indicated below. This anatytical information is presented net of tax and is based on счrrепсу exchange

rаtе fluctuations that the Bank considered rеаsопаЬlу possible at the end of the rероrtiпg period. The

ana[ysis was carried out based оп the assumption that а[[ other variables, in particu[ar rеmuпеrаtiоп
rаtеS, rеmаiп unchanged.

42

AssETS
Cash and cash equivalents З17,712,280
Accounts and deposits with banks 184,910
Loans granted to счstоmеrs 47,948,060
Financial assets at amortized cost 88,107,686
Other financial assets 205,410

(50,1 1 6)
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2oz4 2о23
Profit оr loss Equity Profit оr loss Equity

'l5% iпсrеаsе in US doltar/tenge rаtе
15% iпсrеаsе in Euro/tenge rate
'l 5% iпсrеаsе in Russian rouble/tenge rаtе

9,677

з17
(41)

9,677

з17
(41)

(z9,175)
93

156

(29,175)

9з

156

(с) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial toss arising frоm а default оп obligations Ьу а Ьоrrоwеr оr соuпtеrраrtу
of the Bank. The Bank manages credit risk (оп recognized financial assets and unrecognized contractual
tiabitities) through the app[ication of approved policies and рrосеdчrеs, including requirements fоr
setting and keeping the credit risk сопсепtrаtiоп limits, as we[[ as through the estab[ishment of а Credit
Committee, whose functions inctude active monitoring of credit risk. The сrеdit policy is reviewed and
approved Ьу the Воаrd of Directors.

The credit poticy estab[ishes:

о рrосеdurеs fоr consideration and аррrоча[ of credit applications;
о methods for assessing the creditworthiness of Ьоrгоwеrs (соrроrаtе customers and individua[s);
о methods for assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties;
о methods for assessing the proposed col[atera[;
о rеqчirеmепts fоr credit documentation; and
о рrосеdurеs for ongoing mопitоriпg of loans and оthеr products Ьеаriпg credit risk.

Loan app[ications frоm соrроrаtе customers аrе drafted Ьу the respective to customer account managers
and then passed for consideration Ьу the Lending Division, which is responsible for the portfo[io of [оапs
granted to [ega[ entities. The reports of analysts of this Division аrе based оп а struсtчrаl analysis of the
business and financiaI position of а Ьоrrоwеr. App[ications and rероrts аrе then independently reviewed
Ьу the Risk Мапаgеmепt Division, which issues the second opinion; at the same time, the рrореr
satisfaction of the rеquirеmепts of the credit poticy is checked. The Credit Committee approves [оап
applications based оп documents provided Ьу the Lending Division, lntegrated Security Department,
Co[[atera[ Va[uation Department, LegaI and Risk Management Divisions.

The Bank constant[y monitors the status of individual loans and reassesses the solvency of its Ьоrrоwеrs
оп а rеgu[аr basis. Reassessment procedures аrе based on ап analysis of the Ьоrгоwеr's financia[
statements at the [atest reporting date оr оthеr information provided Ьу the Ьоrrоwеr itself оr otheMise
obtained Ьу the Bank. At the same time, the decision to grant each [oan is made Ьу the Credit Committee
after а[[ the necessary рrосеdurеs have Ьееп completed, which in turn allows contro[ling the entire
credit рrосеss with а sma[[ пumЬеr of incoming applications.

|п addition to analysing individuat Ьоrrоwегs, the Risk Management Division assesses the [оап portfolio
as а whole in terms of сопсепtrаtiоп of loans and market risks.

The maximum [ече[ of credit risk is gепеrа[[у reflected in the саrryiпg amount of financial assets in the
statement of financial position and in the amount of unrecognized contractuat liabitities. The abitity to
offset assets and tiabitities is not essential to minimize potential credit risk.

Organizations in the banking sесtоr аrе gепеrаllу exposed to credit risk arising frоm financial assets апd
contingent tiabitities. The Bank's credit risk is concentrated in the Republic of Kazakhstan. The degree
of credit risk is subject to constant monitoring in оrdеr to ensure compliance with credit [imits and
creditworthiness in ассоrdапсе with the risk management po[icy approved Ьу the Bank.
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The maximum [ече[ of ехроsurе to credit risk in relation to financial assets at the reporting date сап Ье
presented as fo[[ows:

3,1 DесеmЬеr
zo24

31 December
202з

ASSETS
Cash and cash equiva[ents
Accounts and deposits with banks
Loans granted to customers
FinanciaI assets at amortized cost
other financial assets
Total mахimчm ехроsчrе to сгеdit risk

529,876,309
1 84,91 з

77,950,286
5з"l 2з,428

з35,979,749
,l84,910

48,115,117
88,107,686

169 154 540 261
662,з04,090 472,927,72з

31 DесеmЬеr 2024

Cash and cash equivalents
Ассоuпts and deposits with
banks
Loans granted to customerS
Fiпапсiаl assets at amortized
coSt
other financiaI assets
Total assets

31 DесеmЬеr 2023

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts and deposits with
banks
Loans granted to customers
Financial assets at amortized
cost
other financial assets
Total assets

__!l!,_1z9ll9_ 2,з14,921

529,876,309

54,646 ,| 
,556,064

184,913
77,950,286

5з,1 2з,428
1 169 154

54,646 ___]_,ll!д!1 662 з04 090

Stage 1

Оп а group basis

529,876, з09

184,91з
74,074,655

53,1 2з,428
169 154

Stage ,l

Оп а grочр basis

зз5,979,749

184,910
45,1 1 9,387

88, 1 07,686
540,261

Stage 2

Оп а grочр
basis

Stage 3

Оп а group basis
Stage 3

lndividually
Total

Total

зз5,979,749

,|84,9,10

48,115,117

2,314,921

Stage 2

Оп а grоuр
basis

Stage 3

Оп а group basis
Stage 3

lndividually

1,094,636 107,769 1,793,з25

88,1 07,686
540,261

__l!lJ1_1,9lt_ 1,094,6зб 1о7 769 ____1_,Zl]J?_5 472 927 7zз

Ап analysis of со[[аtеrаl оп loans granted to customers and the сопсепtrаtiоп of credit risk оп loans to
customers is presented in Note 12.

The maximum level of exposure to credit risk in relation to unrecognized contractuat ob[igations as of
the rероrtiпg date is provided fоr in Note 20.

Significant iпсrеаsе iп credit risk

The Bank monitors all of the financial assets that qualify fоr impairment requirements fоr significant
iпсrеаsеs in credit risk since initial recognition. lf а significant increase in credit risk is detected, the
Bank calcu[ates the amount of ап аllоwапсе based оп the amount of credit losses expected during the
епtirе lоап tеrm and not just the next 12 months.

The Bank uses estimates of credit risk as the main input in determining the timing structure of the
probabitity of default for exposures. The Bank collects реrfоrmапсе and defau[t information оп credit
ехроsurеs analysed Ьу jurisdiction оr rеgiоп, as we[[ as Ьу product type and Ьоrrоwеr, as we[[ as Ьу credit
risk c[assification. The information used is internaI and external depending оп the portfotio being
assessed.

44

\



SHINHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC

NOTES ТО ТНЕ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FоR тнЕ YEAR ENDED 31 DEсEMBER 2024 (coNTlNUED)
(iп thousonds of Kozakhstani tепgе)

!дю
ЧАZАQSТДN

Для
отчётов

The Bank uses various criteria to determine whether the credit risk реr portfo[io of assets has increased
significantly. Both quantitative and qua[itative changes iп the probabitity of defau[t аrе used as criteria.

Fоr loans granted that аrе measured co[lectively, а significant increase in credit risk is determined based
оп the iпсrеаsе in the probabitity of default очеr the entire [оап term after initia[ recognition, using
сеrtаiп thresholds fоr segmented homogeneous portfo[ios and for loans overdue mоrе than З0 days after
initial rесоgпitiоп. Fоr [oans that аrе measured оп ап individual basis, additional[y iп case of а decrease
iп the ехtеrпа[ / iпtеrпаl credit rating Ьу 2 (two) leve[s (рrеsепсе of restructuring in case of deteгioration
of the financia[ condition for classification in Stage 3), the expert opinions of the Bank's specia[ists аrе
based оп changes in qua[itative and quantitative indicators of а Ьоrrоwеr, significant deterioration in
co[lateraI and other objective evidence of significant financiaI difficulties since initiaI recognition.

The third stage is determined for loans measured on а collective basis with ап очеrduе debt period
exceeding 60-90 days, for loans measured on ап individua[ basis with ап overdue очеr 60 days,
rеstruсturiпg associated with а deterioration in the financial condition, deterioration of the iпtеrпа[
credit rating and expert opinion of the Bank's specialists.

The Bank's management believes that сеrtаiп financial instruments with low credit risk did not hаvе а
significant iпсrеаsе in credit risk at the reporting date Ьу apptying this poticy to financia[ instruments
issued оп[у to sovereign and financial institutions. А financial instrument is assumed to have а low сrеdit
risk when the ехtеrпаl credit rating is equiva[ent to the definition of ап 'investment grade' Ьу the
international rating agencies.

The Bank has imp[emented monitoring procedures to епsurе that the criteria used to determine а

significant iпсrеаsе in credit аrе effective, meaning that а significant increase in credit risk is identified
рriоr to а risk default оr when ап asset becomes 30 days past due.

Provision of fоrwаrd- Iooking iпfоrmаtiоп

The Bank uses forward-looking iпfоrmаtiоп, which is avai[ab[e without undue cost оr effort, when
estimating significant iпсrеаsе in credit risk, as we[[ as when estimating expected credit [osses.

The inclusion of forward-looking elements ref[ects the Bank's expectations. The Вапk considers scenarios
the пчmЬеr of which depends оп the assessment of the tiketihood of implementation, the significance of
this scenario, changing circumstances апd the mасrоесопоmiс епчirопmепt.

The рurроsе of using scenarios is to model the поп-[iпеаr impact of mасrоесопоmiс factors оп expected
credit losses.

The Bank identified and documented the key indicators affecting portfo[ios of financiaI instruments and,

using statistical analysis of historical data, assessed the re[ationship between mасrоесопоmiс чаriаЬlеs
and credit risk and credit [oss.

(d) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Вапk mау епсоuпtеr difficutty in raising cash to settle its tiabilities.
Liquidity risk arises when maturities of assets and tiabitities do not match. The matching апd/оr
control[ed mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and tiabitities is fundamental to
tiquidity risk management. Due to the variety of transactions settled and related uncertainty, the fu[[

matching of the maturities of assets and liabitities is not а соmmоп practice for financial institutions,
which makes it possibte to iпсrеаsе the rеtчrп оп transactions, whi[e increasing the risk of losses.
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The Bank maintains the necessary level of tiquidity in оrdеr to ensure the constant avaitabitity of cash
necessary to settle atl tiabitities as they fall due. The tiquidity management policy is reviewed and
approved Ьу the Board of Directors. The Bank strives to actively maintain а diversified and stab[e
structure of funding sources consisting of lопg-tеrm loans from internationa[ financia[ organizations,
short-term [oans frоm other banks, deposits of major соrроrаtе customers and individuals, as we[l as а
diversified portfolio of highty liquid assets to епаЬ[е the Bank to rеsропd quickty without sudden
f[uctuations to unforeseen tiquidity requirements.

Тhе section of the соrроrаtе risk management policy, which relates to tiquidity risk management,
consists of:

. forecasting the cash flows in the context of the main currencies and the ca[culation associated
with these cash f[ows of the required [eve[ of [iquid assets;

. maintaining а diversified structure of funding sочrсеs;
о mапаgеmепt of the concentration and structure of Ьоrrоwеd funds;
. development of plans to raise funds using Ьоrrоwеd funds;
. maintaining а portfolio of highty liquid assets that сап Ье freely so[d as а protective mеаsчrе in

case of cash tiquidity gap;
. developing rеsеrче plans to maintain tiquidity and set level of financing; and
. exercising сопtrо[ очеr the сопfоrmапсе of tiquidity indicators to the tegatty estab[ished standards.

The Treasury receives information frоm the divisions оп the tiquidity strчсtчrе of their financial assets
апd tiabilities and on forecasting the cash f[ows expected frоm the рlаппеd future business.

The Treasury then forms ап аррrорriаtе portfolio of сurrепt liquid assets consisting рrimаri[у of short,
tеrm tiquid securities hetd fоr trade, deposits placed with banks, and оthеr interbank products, in оrdеr
to provide the necessary level of tiquidity for the Bank as а whole.

The Treasury monitors the tiquidity position оп а dai[y basis and саrriеs out 'stress tests' оп а rеgu[аr
basis taking into account а variety of possib[e market scenarios чпdеr both поrmаl and adverse
conditions. Uпdеr поrmаl mаrkеt conditions, liquidity reports аrе provided to the top management оп а
weekty basis. Decisions оп tiquidity management poticy аrе made Ьу the CALM and executed Ьу the
Treasury.

The fotlowing tabtes show the undiscounted cash f[ows for financial assets, financiaI tiabi[ities and
contingent credit tiabitities at the earliest contractuaI maturity date. The total receipts and disposa[s of
cash flows shown in these tables аrе the contractual undiscounted cash flows of financial assets,
tiabitities оr contingent credit liabitities. Fоr issued financiaI gчаrапtее сопtrасts, the maximum аmоuпt
of guarantees relates to the earliest period in which the guarantee сап Ье used.
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On-demand and less 1-3 months
than 1 month

3-6 months 6-12 months

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Accounts and deposits of banks
Счrrепt accounts and deposits of customers
Loans frоm internationa( financial organizations
other financiat tiabitities
Totat liabilities
Сопtiпgепt credit liabilities
Total non-derivative financial liabilities

506, з,| 6
зз,809,85 1

1,247,75з
1,8з2,87,1

9,52з, з28
780,746

756

5о4,867,714
2,247,071

з8,99з,202
з,214,907

2,195

506, з1 6
587,з4з,799

1 6,550,756
1,836,987

506, з1 6
566, з85,686

1 4,058,073
1,8з6,987

More thап
1 уеаr

149,704
9,060,279

Total disposal of
cash flows

Carrying amount

165

______}l}у,7э-1
5,456,6з1

42,853,422

,t 0,304,830

10, 304,8з0 507 115 950

Analysis of financial tiabitities in tеrms of maturity as of 31 DесеmЬеr 202З сап Ье presented as fo[[ows:

On-demand апd less 1-3 months
thап 1 month

3-6 months 6-12 months

Non-derivative financial liabiIities
Accounts and deposits of banks
Счrrепt accounts апd deposits of сUstоmеrs
Loans from internationaI financia[ organizations
other financiat tiabitities
Totat liabilities
Contingent credit liabilities
Total non-derivative financial tiabitities

950 42,21 0,з04 9,209,98з 606,2з7,858 582,787,о621,1 5

Моrе thап
1 year

Total disposal of Carrying amount
cash flows

348,4з8
1 6,7з9,568

з46,653
414,80з

______l],эЦ,4!2
7,954,21о

75з,440,882
ззз,472

,l49,018,210
,l 

,1 35,209
24,1zбzз 754

1 2,356,501
1,868,681

48,275

BT,izz оз,,;13:;i: ,o,3i3:i]3
6,140,199 9,824,214 7,02з,267
1 50,418 661 ,з76 661 ,з76

___qJz!,.li!- ---з42,47],111- ---49д!gд-q-2 5з, 798,108 150 177 545 14,27з,457
7,954,21о 2,248,488

25,8оз,672 25з,798,108 15о,177,545 14,z7з,457 6,з78,5з9 450,431,32,1 430,з17,004

lп accordance with the tegisLation of the Repubtic of Kazakhstan, depositors have the right to withdraw their term deposits from the Вапk at апу tjme, whjte iп
most cases they lose the right to recejve accrued interest income. Тhе5е deposits were presented based оп the terms of their payment established in the
аgrееmепt5.

However, the mапаgеmепt believes that regardless ofthe existence of ап early withdrawal option апd the fact that а significant portion of deposjts are demand
depos]'ts, the diveБification of these ассоUпь апd deposits Ьу the пчmЬеr апd types of depositoБ апd the ВапКs past еrФеriепсё аrё indicatjons that these
accounts rерrеsепt а lопg-tеrm and stable source of fiпапсiпg.

The mапаgеmепt expects that cash flows in respect of certain fiпапсiаt assets and liabitities mау differ from those specified in the contracts, either because
the mапаgеmепt i5 authorized to manage cash flows or becauýe past experience jndicates that the timing of cash flows of thesё financial assets and liabititieý
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mау differ frоm the tеrms set in the contracts
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Analysis of financial tiabitities in terms of maturity as of З1 DесеmЬеr 2024 сап Ье presented as fo[[ows:
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FоR тнЕ YEAR ENDED 31 DEсEMBER 2024 (coNTlNUED)

thоцsапds kozokhstani

The tabte provides analysis in tеrms of maturities of amounts recognized iп the statement of financial position as of 3't December 2024:

on-demand апd
less than
1 month

529,876, з09

,l 
, з25,1 53

з,з95,417
684,526

(506,з1 6)

(з3,81 5,302)
(285,972)

1-3 months

184,9,1 3

z,666,226
4,970,17з

Моrе than 5
years

9,398,295

No
maturity

date

очеrdче

з00,855

Total

529,876,з09
1 84, 9,1 з

77,950,286
5з,lzз,428

1 , зз5,,l01

3-12 months 1 -5 уеаrs

Non-derivative assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts and deposits with banks
Loans issued to customers
Financial assets at amortized cost
оthеr assets

Total assets

Non-derivative financial tiabilities
and deposits of banks

Счrrепt accounts апd deposits of customers
Loans from iпtеrпаtiопа[ financiaI organizations
other tiabitities

Total liabilities
Net position

5з5,281,405 __J_,э2l}11- ____щ,qщ.ц8 55,804,0з2 ____2Jlд;1_1_

(1 38,468)
(9,899,260)

з9,850,1 02
,l 3,363,461

650,575

24,409,655
з1 ,з94,177

__щ9.щ_5 037

(1 871 )

(9,508,559)
(з71,6zh

(756)

(522,92з,357)
(3,501,2,!4)

(3,з60)

(506,31 6)

(566, з85,686)
(1 4,058,07з)
(1,836,987)

(з6,440,461) (9,880,942) (5zb,4z7 ,931) (1 0,037,728) (582,787,062)

498 840 944 (2,059,630) (472,56з,793| 45,766,3о4 9,398,295 _д9.q!_5 79,682,975
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The tab[e provides ana[ysis iп terms of maturities of аmоuпts recognized in the statement of financial position as of З'| DесеmЬеr 2023

Non-derivative assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts and deposits with banks
Loans granted to customers
Financial assets at amortized cost
other assets

Total assets

Non-derivative fiпапсiа[ liabitities
Accounts and deposits of banks
Сurrепt accounts and deposits of customers
Loans from iпtеrпаtiопа[ financial organizations
other tiabitities

Total liabilities

Net position

On-demand апd 1-3 months 3-12 mопths
less than
1 month

зз5,979,749
1 84,910

z,264,772
7,150,279

860

1-5 years Моrе thап 5 No maturity Overdue
yeaв date

16,0з4,787
4,81 5, 1 68

6, 589, з90 45,110

848

565,749
72,684,з14

5з4,971

22,61 5,809
з,457,925

z,58z

Total

зз5,979,749
184,910

48,115,117
88,1 07,686

540,261

4о9,764,78з 9,600,321 26,076,316 20,851,80з 6,589,390 45,110 472,927,72з

(з48,438)
(16,7z7,770,

(зз7,962)

(414,804)

(247,685,656)
(2з1,3z7|

(2з,754|

(1 55,564,050)
(2,1 00,984)

(72,40о|

(з1,578)
(4,352,994)

(1 50,41 8)

(26,з81 )

(348,4з8)

(420,035,435)
(7,02з,267|

(66,1 ,376)

-J11,8жэl9_
з91,935,809

з47эц,7э])_
41 6)

!57,]!,!э!L
(1з1,661,118)

(4,5з4,990) (26,з81 )

16,316,81з 6,563,009
(4:8,068, 51 6)

______15,_]1_9_ 44,859,2о7

оiJ
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SHINHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC

NOTES ТО ТНЕ FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FоR тнЕ YEAR ENDED з,t DEсEMBER 2024 (coNTlNUED)
(iп thousonds of Kozakhstani tenge)

21. сAP|TAL MANAGEMENT

The RK NB sets and monitors comptiance with the Bank's capita[ requirements.

The Bank defines as capita[ items that аrе defined in ассоrdапсе with the [egis[ation as items that
constitute the capita[ of сrеdit institutions. As of З1 DесеmЬеr 2024, the minimum [ече[ of tier 1 capitat
to risk-weighted assets, contingent tiabilities, operationa[ and market risks is 0.09 (31 December 2023:
0.075), and the minimum [eve[ of total capitaI to risk-weighted assets, contingent [iabi[ities, ореrаtiопа[
and market risks, is 0.105 (З1 DесеmЬеr 202З: 0.10).

As of 31 DесеmЬеr 2024 and 202З, the Bank has futfitted а[[ rеgulаtоry capitat requirements, while the
tier ,l capital rаtiо to risk-weighted assets, contingent liabi[ities, operational and market risks as of 31

DесеmЬеr 2024 is 1,964 (З1 DесеmЬеr 2023: 0.980), and The level of total capital to risk-weighted
assets, contingent liabilities, operational and market risks is 1.964 (31 DесеmЬеr 202З: 0.980).

22. coNTlNGENT cREDlT LIAB]LlTlES

(а) Contingent credit liabilities

The Bank issues bank guаrапtееs and opens letters of credit iп оrdег to епsurе the fulfi[ment of the
obtigations of its customers to third parties. These agreements fix tiabitity [imits and, as а ru[е, аrе va[id
for up to five уеаrs.

The Bank applies the same risk management policies апd procedures in issuing financia[ guarantees,
contingent сrеdit tiabilities and letters of credit as it does in granting loans to customers.

дs at З1 DесеmЬеr 2024, the Вапk had outstanding сопtrасtuаl contingent tiabilities for the provision of
сrеdit [ines in the amount of 5,354,171 thousand tenge (31 December 2023: 7,860,511 thousand tenge)
and guarantees and [etters of credit issued in the amount of KZT 102,460 thousand (31 DесеmЬеr 2023:
9З,699 thousand tenge).

(Ь) Pending litigations

The mапаgеmепt is not аwаrе of апу materiat actual оr pending litigations, as we[[ as potential c[aims
that mау Ье brought against the Вапk.

(с) lпsurапсе

The market of iпsurапсе services in the Repub[ic of Kazakhstan is at the stage of deve[opment, thеrеfоrе,
mапу forms of iпsurапсе сочеrаgе used in оthеr countries аrе not yet avai[able in the Republic of
Kazakhstan. The Bank did not maintain full iпsчrапсе of buildings and equipment, suspension of business
оr in relation to the liabitity of third parties fоr рrореrtу оr environmenta[ damage caused as а result of
the use of the Bank's рrореrtу.

The Bank has concluded а comprehensive iпsчrапсе сопtrасt fоr banking risks from electronic and
computer crimes. The iпsчrеr is Nomad lпsчrапсе lпsurапсе Company JSC. The аgrееmепt is vatid for 12

months frоm the date of signing.

Untit the Bank adequate[y insures its activities, thеrе is а risk that [osses iпсurrеd and оr [oss of certain
assets mау have а material adverse effect оп the activities and financial position of the Bank.
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(d) Тах liabilities

The tax system of Kazakhstan is relative[y new and it is characterized Ьу frequent changes in [egislation,
officia[ ctarifications апd court decisions that аrе often uпс[еаr and contradictory, which a[lows for their
ambiguous iпtеrрrеtаtiоп Ьу various tax authorities, including opinions regarding the treatment of
income, expenses and оthеr items of the financial statements in ассоrdапсе with lFRSs. Checks and
investigations regarding the correctness of tax assessment аrе carried out Ьу regulatory authorities of
different [evels, which have the right to impose lаrgе penalties апd сhаrgе interest. The соrrесtпеss of
tax assessment in the reporting period сап Ье verified within the next five calendar years, however,
uпdеr сеrtаiп circumstances, this period may Ье extended.

These сirсчmstапсеs mау lead to the fact that tax risks in Kazakhstan wi[[ Ье much higher than in other
countries. Management believes that tax tiabitities have Ьееп fu[[y reflected in these financiaI
statements based оп management's iпtеrрrеtаtiоп of applicable tax [aws, official comments оп
regulatory documents and decisions of judiciaI authorities. However, given the fact that interpretations
of tax taws Ьу various regulatory authorities mау differ from opinion of the Bank's management, if
епfоrсеmепt action is taken Ьу the regu[atory authorities, the impact on the Bank's financial statements
could Ье materia[.

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSAсT|oNS

Controlling relations

The Bank's parent соmрапу is Shinhan Bank JSC (Seou[, Republic of Коrеа). The раrепt соmрапу of the
Bank рrераrеs the financia[ statements avai[ab[e to ехtеrпаl usеrs.

The Bank's ultimate раrепt соmрапу is Shinhan Fiпапсiа[ Group Со. Ltd, which is authorized to direct at
its own discretion and in its own interests the activities of the Вапk.

(Ь) Transactions with mеmЬеrs of the Board of Directors and the Management Board

The tota[ rеmuпеrаtiоп inc[uded in 'Реrsоппеl Expenses' fоr the years ended 31 December 2024 апd 2023
can Ье presented as fo[[ows:

zo24 20zз

Board of Directors
Management Board

other assets

Сurrепt accounts and deposits
оthеr tiabitities

14,zz8
287,880

11,865
зz2,607

______]9з.щ8 _______э}1,472

As of 31 DесеmЬеr 2024 and 202З, account balances and average interest rаtеs оп transactions with
mеmЬеrs of the Board of Directors and Management Воаrd amounted to:

Statement of financiaI position 31 DесеmЬеr
2о24

19,787

(1 0,594)
(з7,074)

Average interest
rаtе, %

4.94

31 DесеmЬеr
zo23

1,278
(43,1 16)

(51,z24|

Ачеrаgе interest
rаtе, %

0.98

51



SH]NHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC

NOTES ТО ТНЕ F|NANC|AL STATEMENTS
FоR тнЕ YEAR ENDED з1 DEсEMBER 2024 (coNTlNUED)
(iп thousonds of Kazokhstoni tепgе)

l,
,l

QДZДQSТЛN
Для

отчётов

The amounts included in profit оr loss оп transactions with members of the Board of Directors and the
Management Board for the уеаr ended 31 DесеmЬеr may Ье presented as fo[[ows:

Statement of profit оr loss апd оthеr comprehensive income
Fоrеigп exchange gains
Fее income
lnterest expenses
Оthеr gепеrаl and administrative expenses

Statement of financial position
AssETS
Cash and cash equivalents

- Еurо
- other сurrепсу

Loans granted to customers
- tenge

оthеr assets
- tenge

LlABlLlTlES
Accounts and deposits of banks

- tenge
- US dottar
- Ечrо

Счrrепt accounts and deposits of customers
- tenge
- US dоttаr

other tiabitities
- tenge
- US dottar

ltems not recognized in the statement of
financial position
Received guarantees*
- tenge
- U5 dottar
credit faci[ities

з1
DесеmЬеr

2о24

36,049

(,|4,960,384)

20z4 zоzз
695
zz7

(675)

,957|(1

818
2зз

(60з)
(z,414)

(с) Тrапsасtiопs with other related parties

дs of 31 DесеmЬеr 2024 and 2023, account balances and the corresponding ачеrаgе interest rates, as
we[[ as the corresponding profit оr loss оп transactions with other re[ated parties fоr the уеаr then
ended, amounted to:

Раrепt bank Other related parties
Average

interest rate, %

31
DесеmЬеr

zO24

Average
interest rate, %

35,
1,

556
485

24,938,630

(3 1 9,572)
(2,409)

(59)

(3,850,000)

1 5.26

(48,010)
(452,з5,1)

(5,956)

6.09
0.02

(421|
( 1 07,855 )
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(iп thousoпds of Kozakhstani tепgе)

раrепt Ьапk Other related parties

Statement of profit оr loss and other
comprehensive income

(Loss)/income from foreign сurrепсу
transactions
lnterest income
lntereSt expenSeS
Fее income
Fее expenses
Other genera[ and administrative expenses

Statement of financial position
AsSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

- Ечrо
- other счrrепсу

Loans granted to customers
- tenge

LlABlLlTlES
Accounts and deposits of banks

- tenge
- US dоttаr
- Ечrо

Сuгrепt accounts and deposits of customers
- tenge
- US dоttаr

other tiabitities
- tenge
- US dоttаr

ltems not recognized in the statement of
financiaI position
Received guarantees*

- tenge
- US dottar

credit faci[ities

Statement of рrоfit оr loss апd other
соmрrеhепsiче income

lпсоmе frоm foreign сurrепсу transactions
lnterest income
lnterest expenses
Fее iпсоmе
Fее expenses
Оthеr gепеrа[ and administrative expenses

zoz4 Average
interest rate,%

Ачеrаgе
interest rаtе,%

2024

(36,736)
2,1 53

(66,765)
(11з,520)

6,1 55
2,846,1 00

(16,420)
8,930

(2,039)
(2,1 38)

(22)

-дs of з'| December 2024, guarantees received include guarantees in the tenge and the US dollars provided Ьу the
parent bank and for [oans granted to соrроrаtе clients. The guarantees аrе interest-free, the expiration date of the
guarantees is 26 Мау 2026;30 June 2027, 5 October 2О26, and 30 DесеmЬеr 2026. Gчаrапtееs received from other

ietated parties include the guarantees in the tenge provided Ьу а соmрапу belonging to Shinhan Fiпапсiа[ Grоuр Со.

Ltd, and'for [oans granted to its subsidiary in Kazakhstan. The guarantees аrе interest-free and the guarantees ехрirе

on 27 Aprit 2026 and 25 September 2026.

Раrепt bank Other related parties
31

DесеmЬеr
zоzз

Average
interest rаtе,%

31
DесеmЬеr

zо2з

Average
interest rate,%

раrепt bank

16,z73
25з

,l 2,398,039

(526,3 1 7)
(509)

(1 19)

Оthеr related parties

,|6.9,|

(2з,1 59)
(32з,529)

(1,750)

5.98
0,41

(4,496)
(з0, з04)

(з,400,000)
(5,409,264)

(1

(2

30

500
500
000

000)
080)
000)

2оzз Average
interest rаtе,%

20ZЗ Average
interest rate,%

467

3,з17
(з2,58з)
(88,305)

5,599
858,800

(175,749)
8,675

( 1 31 ,566)

5з
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** Gчаrапtее received frоm other related parties includes the guarantees in the tenge issued Ьу а соmрапу from the
group of Shiпhап Financia[ Group Со. Ltd, fоr loans granted to its subsidiary in Kazakhstan. Guarantees аrе interest-
free, guarantees ехрirе оп 23 August 2024 and 22 Маrсh 2024.

54



NOTES ТО ТНЕ FlNANC|AL STATEMENTS
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24. FlNANC|AL ASSETS AND LlABlLlTlES: FAlR VALUE AND ACCOUNTlNG CLASS|FICATION

(а) Accounting classification and fair value

The fo[[owing tabte provides carrying amount and fair va[ue of financial assets and tiabitities as of З1 December 2024:

Financial assets
Cash and cash equiva[ents
Accounts and deposits with banks
Loans granted to customers
- corporate cu5tomers
- retail сustоmеrs

Financial assets at amortized cost
other financiaI assets

Financial liabilities
Accounts and deposits of banks
Сurrепt accounts and deposits of customers
Loans from iпtеrпаtiопа[ financial organizations
оthеr financiat tiabitities

At amortized
cost

53, 1 2з,428

Payables and Оthеr at
receivables amortized cost

5z9,876,з09
,l84,91 з

65,494,016
12,456,770

169 154

Total carrying
аmоUпt

Fair value

529,876,з09
1 84,91 3

187,897
60,623

1 ,169,154

529,876,309
184,9,tз

65,494,016
12,456,270
5з,1 23,428

169 154

53, 12з,428 609, 1 80,662 662,304,090 __д_цZq,q9!_

(983,064)

(506,3 1 6)
(566,385,686)

(1 4,058,07з)
(з,808)

(506, з1 6)
(566,385,686)

(1 4,058,073)
(986,872)

(506,з1 6)
(566,385,686)

( 14,058,073)
(986,872)

(98з,064) (580,95з,883) (581,9з6,947) (581,936,947)

о
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The following tab[e provides carrying amount and fаir va[ue of financial assets and liabitities as of 31 December 2023:

At amortized cost Payables апd Other at
receivables amortized cost

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts апd deposits with banks
Loans granted to customers
- corporate customers

8,696,405 - retaiI customers
Financial assets at amortized cost
other financiaI assets

88"l 07,686
540 761

88,,l 07,686 з84,820,0з7
Fiпапсiа] liabilities
Accounts and deposits of banks
Счrrепt accounts and deposits of customers
Loans from iпtеrпаtiопа[ financiaI organizations
other financiat liabilities (66,| ,176)

зз5,979,749
184,9,10

з8, з 1 2,975
9,807,147

Tota1 саrrуiпg
аmоUпt

Fаir ча]че

зз5,979,749
,l 84,9 1 0

з6,067,1 09
9,o77,4z5

87,541,363

зз5,979,749
184,9,10

з8, з 1 2,975
9,80z,l42

88,1 07,686
540,261 540 261

_____ц2,927,]ц_ 469 390 817

(з48,438)
(420,0з5,4з5)

(7,0z3,267)
(200)

(з48,438)
(420,035,435)

(7,0z3,?67)
(661,з76)

(348,4з8)
(420,0з5,4з5)

(7,оzз,267|
(661,376)

(661,176) (4z7,4о7,з4о, (428,068,516) (428,068 ,516)
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The fair value measurement aims to determine the price that would Ье received frоm sa[e of an asset оr
paid to trапsfеr tiabitities in ап organized market transaction between the mаrkеt p[ayers at the
mеаsurеmепt date. However, given the uпсеrtаiпtу and the use of subjective judgment, fair value should
not Ье interpreted as rea[izab[e as раrt of ап immediate sa[e of assets оr а trапsfеr of liabitities.

The fair va[ue of financial assets and financiat tiabitities traded in active mаrkеt is based оп market
quotations оr dеаlеr prices. The Bank determines the fair value of а[[ оthеr financial instruments of the
Bank using the other valuation methods.

The valuation methods include mode[s fоr estimating net present va[ue and discounting cash flows,
comparing them with similar instruments for which mаrkеt quotations аrе known. Judgments and data
used fоr estimating include risk-free and чпdеr[уiпg interest rates, credit spreads and оthеr adjustments
used to estimate discount rates, share and bond quotations, foreign exchange rates, stock indices, as
we[[ as expected рriсе f[uctuations and their comparison. The valuation methods аrе aimed at
determining the fair value, which reflects the value of а financiaI instrument at the reporting date, which
wou[d Ье determined Ьу independent market рlауеrs.

Management used the discount rаtе assumptions of 16.01% апd 17.64% (in 2023: 19.47 апd 21.00%) to
discount future cash flows based оп the fair value assessment of loans in tenge issued to соrроrаtе
customers and [oans issued to rеtаiI customers, respectively, 6.1З% (iп 2023: 6.80%), to discount future
cash f[ows based оп the assessment of the fair value of loans in US dollars issued to соrроrаtе c[ients.

(Ь) Fаir чаlче hiеrаrсhу

The Bank measures fair ча[че using the fol[owing fair va[ue hiеrаrсhу taking into account the materiality
of the data used in making these measurements.

Levet 1: active mаrkеt quotations (unadjusted) for identical financia[ instruments.
Leve[ 2: Data, other thап Level 1 quotations, avai[able either directly (i.e. quotations) оr indirectty
(i.e. data derived frоm quotations). This category includes instruments measured using: market
quotations in active markets fоr identical instruments, market quotations for identical instruments
in markets not considered to Ье active, оr other valuation methods, а[[ of whose data аrе directly
оr indirect[y based оп observable inputs.
Level 3: data that is not available. This category includes instruments measured using information
not based оп оЬsеrчаЬlе inputs, whеrе such unobservable inputs have а significant impact оп
measurement of ап instrument. This category includes instruments measured based оп quotations
for identicaI instruments and rеquirе the use of significant unobservable adjustments or judgments
to ref[ect а difference between the instruments.

The Bank has а сопtrоl system in rеlаtiоп to the fair value mеаsurеmепt. This system includes the Risk
Management Department, which is independent frоm the management of the front office and rероrts to
the Chief Financia[ Officer, and which is responsibte fоr the independent verification of the trading and
investment реrfоrmапсе, as well as all materiat fair value measurements. Special contro[ mechanisms
include:

verification of оЬsеrчаЬ[е quotations;
recalculation according to va[uation models;
process of verification and арргоча[ of new mode[s and changes to models with the participation
of the Risk Management Department;
quarterly va[idation and back-testing of the model against observab[e mаrkеt transactions;
analysis апd study of significant daity changes in estimates; and
review Ьу the Management Board of significant unobservable data, valuation adjustments and
significant changes in the measurement of fair ча[uе of the instruments attributabte to Level 3 as
opposed to the previous month.

a
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When using third раrtу iпfоrmаtiоп, inctuding information about prices and market quotations of Ьrоkеrs,
to mеаsчrе а fair va[ue, the Credit Products Сопtrо[ Department evaluates and documents confirmations
received from third parties in оrdеr to сопfirm the conclusion that such measurements meet the
rеquirеmепts of lFRSs, inc[uding:

confirmation that information about prices оr market quotations of Ьrоkеrs is approved Ьу the
Bank fоr use in pricing the financial instruments;
ап understanding of how а fair ча[uе is measured to the extent that it represents actual mагkеt
transactions;
cases whеrе quotations fоr identical instruments аrе used to mеаsurе а fair ча[че, determining
how those quotations have Ьееп adjusted to ref[ect the characteristics of the instrument being
measured; and
cases of using а пчmЬеr of quotations fоr identical financial instruments, determining how а fair
ча[uе is measured using these quotations.

Significant issues related to the measurement аrе brought to the attention of the Management Воаrd

The tables below provide ап analysis of the fair vatue of financia[ instruments поt mеаsчrеd at fair
value as of З't DесеmЬеr 2024 and 2023, Ьу leve[s of the fair va[ue hiеrаrсhу:

Level 2 Fair va]ue Carrying
аmоUпt2о24

Financial assets
Accounts and deposits with banks
Loans granted to customers
FinanciaI assets at amortized cost
оthеr financiaI assets 169 154 169 154

___э],1э],эl4 __з]_,1э],9л4 1з2,427,781

Fiпапсiаl liabitities
Accounts and deposits of banks
Current accounts and deposits of customers
Loans frоm iпtеrпаtiопа[ financiaI organizations
other financiat tiabitities

Level 2 Fair value Саrrуiпg
аmочпt202з

Fiпапсiаl assets
Accounts and deposits with banks
Loans granted to customers
Financial assets at amortized cost
оthеr financiaI assets 540 261

__]]],1_1l_,9!8 133,41 1,068 __Jэ!,947,2]l_
Fiпапсiа[ liabitities
Accounts and deposits of banks
Сurrепt accounts and deposits of customers
Loans from internationaI financiaI organizations
other financial tiabitities (661 ,376)

(428,068,516) (428,06q,516) (428,068,516)

Level 1: Cash апd cash equivalents as of 31 DесеmЬеr 2024 and 2023 amounted to 529,876,309
thousand tenge and 3З5,979,749 thousand tenge, respectively.

Level 3: As of З1 DесеmЬеr 2024 and 202З amounted to zеrо tenge, respectively.

184,91з
65,843,877

1 84,9,1 з

65,843,877

(506, з1 6)

(566,385,686)
(1 4,058,073)

(986,872)

Fля
отчётов

1 84,91 3

77,950,286
53,,l2з,428
1,169,154

(506, з1 6)

(566,з85,686)
(,l4,058,073)

(986,872)

(506,3,16)

(566,385,686)
(1 4,058,073)

(986,872)

184,9,10
45,144,5з4
87, 541 ,363

540,261

,l84,9,10

48,1 15,117
88, ,1 07,686

540,261

1 84,91 0
45,144,534
87, 541 ,363

(з48,438)
(420,0з5,4з5)

(7,02з,267)

(348,438)
(420,0з5,4з5)

(7,02з,267|
(661,з76)

(348,438)
(420,035,4з5)

(7,0z3,267)
(661,з76)
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25. EVENTS AFTER ТНЕ BALANCE SHEET DATE

Тhеrе аrе по other events in the Bank that оссurrеd рriоr to the date of approval of the financial
statements that wou[d require adjustments оr disclosure in the notes to the financiaI statements.
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